STATE OF ARIZONA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Janet Napolitano
GOVERNOR



PREPARED BY
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
FINANCIAL SERVICES DIVISION
GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE

Acmunting

Office




STATE OF ARIZONA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
(Not Covered by the Independent Auditors’ Report)
Page
Letter OF TEANSIMITIAL ... ..ottt ettt bbbt bt b e e et e b e b e s b e e bt e b e et en b e nbesbesbesbeeb e e e enbeee 1
Arizona State GOVErNMENt OrgANIZATION .........cuiiviieiiiie e s e eee et st e e e re e e e e e e st e s besbesteereessesae e e besrestesreaneeseenseneeses 10
TR ToT o Fo IS o LC= T @ 1 o T PSP 11
FINANCIAL SECTION
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ...ttt sttt sttt sttt st st bbbt s b et sttt bt st nn e e 17
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS.... .ottt ettt sttt st sae st ta v saeteavesnenens 23
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
SEALEMENT OF NEE ASSEES ...ttt et b bt bbbt b e e e b e b e bt ek bt e bt e aeen b e ne e e b et e eb e et e e st ene e e e nas 38
Universities - Affiliated Component Units — Statement of Financial POSItioN ..........c.ccoc v 40
SEALEMENT OF ACHIVITIES ....veei ettt b et e et e e s e re et e besaesbesbeabenreeneeneeneeeas 42
Universities - Affiliated Component Units — Statement 0f ACHVILIES .........cooiiiiiiiiiiee e 44
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:
BaIANCE SNEEL ... .ottt bbb e R bt E b e bt b e b e b et be e et et nrereas 45
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net ASSetS.........ccooevviereriienecnen, 46
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund BalanCes............ccooeiieiiiiieiinc i 47
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement 0f ACHVITIES........coviiiriiii s 48
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:
SEALEIMENT OF NEE ASSEES ...ttt ettt b bbbt e st et et e e bt e b e sb e b e e b e e Reem b e eeesbe s b e eb e et e aneaneeneentas 50
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in FUNG NEt ASSELS ........covviiiieiirerinieneie e 54
StAEMENT OF CASN FIOWS ..ottt bbbt s et bbbttt es 56
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements:
Statement Of FIAUCIANY NEBT ASSELS ......c.eoieeeieeite ittt ettt et e e b et et e e be e e e e e seesbesbesbeebeaneaneeaneeas 60
Statement of Changes iN FIAUCIANY NEE ASSEES ......cviiiieieie sttt e s besbeste e eneesrenas 61
Component Unit Financial Statements:
Combining StAtEMENT OF NET ASSELS .....uiiiiiiteieiit bbbt bbb bbbt et b e 62
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in FuNd Net ASSELS .......cocvivriieeieienene e 63
Universities — Affiliated Component Unit Financial Statements:
Combining Statement of FINANCIal POSITION........c..oiiiiiie st es 64
Combining StatemMENt OF ACTIVITIES ....c..iuiiiiiie bbbttt 65
Notes t0 the FINANCIAl STALEMENTS ..ot bbb et sb et be et sbe et 66
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Expenditures — General FUNG...........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiineeeeeee e 129
Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Expenditures — Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway
Maintenance and SAfELY FUNG ........ccvciiiicccc e ettt e s e te e e es e seesbesteeneeneeneeeenrens 146
Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Comparison SChedules............coevererenenienenienveiieneennn 148
T TS UCTUIE ASSEES ...ttt ettt ettt sttt ettt bbbt bt st eh e e et e aeeb e eb e bt eh £ e Rt e m b e b e eb e e b e e b e eb e e meenbenbeebenbeebeabe e e enbeneen 151
Agent Retirement Plans’ FUNGING PrOQIESS.......uiieieiiieiieiteeesieeteieestestestestesseeseeseesessestestessessessesssessessessessessessesssnssens 156



STATE OF ARIZONA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL SECTION - CONCLUDED

COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Page
Non-major Governmental Funds:
CombBINING BalANCE SNEEL ......c..iiiiiieiieee et bbbt bttt ettt e e e e b e bbb e et et e nas 160
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances............ccocvevvvivineieieciciecenn, 161
Non-major Special Revenue Funds:
CombiNING BalanCe SNEEL ..ot 164
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances............c.ccooeveiininciencne. 166
Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Expenditures — Non-Major Special Revenue Funds ..........c..ccoeevevenennnn 168
Non-major Debt Service Funds:
CombinNiNg BalanCe SHEEL ........oueiiiee e ettt e bbbt nne e 180
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances...........cc.ccooevvevveveiciennennn, 182
Non-major Capital Projects Funds:
CombinNiNg BalanCe SHEEL .........cuiiiiei e bbbttt e bbbt ene e 186
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances...........cc.ccoceevvernieneninnnnn, 187
Non-major Proprietary Funds:
Non-major Enterprise Funds:
Combining StateMENt OF NET ASSELS ....c..eieiieiiieie ittt ettt b et e e e e et sbesbeeneeneeseenas 190
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net ASSEtS ......cccovveivrereienerinienieiesennens 192
Combining Statement 0f Cash FIOWS...........coiiiiiiisecee sttt sae e 194
Internal Service Funds:
Combining StateMENt OF NET ASSELS ....c..eieeieiiieite ettt ettt b et e e et et sbesbeeneeneeeeennas 198
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net ASSEtS ......cccovveiererieienerinienieiesiennans 200
Combining Statement 0f Cash FIOWS...........coiiiiiiiieccc ettt sne e 202
Fiduciary Funds:
Pension Trust Funds:
Combining Statement Of FIAUCIANY NEt ASSELS ......cviiiieiierieisie ettt ettt st sae e 206
Combining Statement of Changes in FIAUCIArY NEt ASSELS .......ccviviieieriere e st 207
Investment Trust Funds:
Combining Statement Of FIAUCIArY NEt ASSELS ......cviiiieiierieiee ettt st s sre e 210
Combining Statement of Changes in FIAUCIArY NEt ASSELS .......viviviieieriee s s sre e see s 211
Agency Funds:
Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities .........ccc.coiiiiiiiiics e 215
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities ...........ccocvviveieie s 216
Non-major Universities — Affiliated Component Units:
Combining Statement of FINANCial POSTTION. .........coiiiiiiiiiii e e 220
Combining StateMENt OF ACHIVITIES ....ccviiiiii i et e s be b e reeneeneesrees 222



STATE OF ARIZONA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONCLUDED)

STATISTICAL SECTION
(Not Covered by the Independent Auditors' Report)
Page
Financial Trends:
Schedule 1 — Net Assets by Component for the Last Five Fiscal YEars .......ccccccovveiiiicieiine e 228
Schedule 2 — Changes in Net Assets for the Last Five FiSCal YEAIS........ccvvvvvriviieeeieee e e 229
Schedule 3 — Fund Balances, Governmental Funds for the Last Five Fiscal Years........cccoceovevnnennieneicnenenens 231
Schedule 4 — Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds for the Last Five Fiscal Years ........cccccocooiininn. 232
Revenue Capacity:
Schedule 5 — Net Taxable Sales by Classification for the Last Ten Fiscal Years.........ccccocvvvvivivsiecieeveieesese e 234
Schedule 6 — Sales Tax Revenue Payers by Classification, Current Year and Nine Years AgO........ccccevverererennn. 237
Debt Capacity:
Schedule 7 — Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type for the Last Ten Fiscal Years........ccccceovvenvninnienennenens 238
Schedule 8 — Legal Debt Margin Information, Arizona Transportation Board Highway Revenue Bonds
FOr the Last TEN FISCAl YBAIS ......ueviiriiiiiiese ettt 240
Schedule 9 — Pledged-Revenue Coverage, Arizona Transportation Board Highway Revenue Bonds
FOr the Last TeN FISCAl YEAIS ....c.veieieiiiie ettt sttt se e et e 241
Schedule 10 - Pledged-Revenue Coverage, Arizona Transportation Board Transportation Excise Tax
Revenue Bonds for the Last TEN FISCAl YBAI'S ......coeviireiiiieise et 241
Schedule 11 - Pledged-Revenue Coverage, School Facilities Board State School Improvement Revenue Bonds
fOr the Last FiIVE FISCAl YEAIS ....ccviiiiiiceiee sttt 242
Schedule 12 - Pledged-Revenue Coverage, School Facilities Board State School Trust Revenue Bonds
fOr the Last THree FISCAl YBAIS ....cvii ittt ettt st st sne e 242
Schedule 13 - Pledged-Revenue Coverage, Arizona State University Revenue Bonds
fOr the Last TeN FISCAl YEAIS .....ecveieieee ettt sttt e s 243
Schedule 14 - Pledged-Revenue Coverage, University of Arizona Revenue Bonds
fOr the Last TEN FISCAl YEBAIS ....cciveiiiieiieiite ettt sttt sb et sbe e b neereas 244
Schedule 15 - Pledged-Revenue Coverage, Northern Arizona University Revenue Bonds
fOr the Last TeN FISCAl YEAIS .....ccveieiee ettt sttt re e 244
Demographic and Economic Information:
Schedule 16 — Demographic and Economic Statistics for the Last Ten Calendar Years ..........ccoovevveeeierencneienn. 245
Schedule 17 — Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine YEars AQO.......cccvrevrerinerenieieseniaeseneeesenesesienens 245
Operating Information:
Schedule 18 — State Employees by Function for the Last Three Fiscal Years.......c.ccovvvveviviiesvsivsivsieeesee e 247
Schedule 19 - Operating Indicators by Function for the Last Ten FiScal Years........ccccoovvevrivrienveieneeierienene e 248

Schedule 20 — Capital Asset Statistics by Function for the Last Ten Fiscal Years..........ccocoovioeniieniennieieie e, 250






INTRODUCTORY
SECTION



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



JANET NAPOLITANO WILLIAM BELL

GOVERNOR DIRECTOR

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR
100 NORTH 15" AVENUE e SUITE 401

PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007
Phone: (602) 542-1500

May 25, 2007

The Honorable Janet Napolitano,

Governor of the State of Arizona;

Members of the Legislature;

Chief Justice of the Supreme Court; and
Citizens and Taxpayers of the State of Arizona

Ladies and Gentlemen:

It is our pleasure to transmit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the State of Arizona for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2006. Responsibility for the accuracy of data, as well as the completeness and fairness of presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the State's management. The data presented in this report, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner which fairly presents the financial position and results of
operations of the major and non-major funds of the State. All disclosures needed for the reader to gain a reasonable understanding
of the State's financial activities have been included.

The report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical.
The Introductory Section includes this Letter of Transmittal, the State's organizational chart and a list of principal State officials.

The Financial Section includes the State Auditor General's Independent Auditors’ Report, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) and the basic financial statements (which include the government-wide financial statements, the fund financial
statements and the notes to the financial statements). The financial section also includes Required Supplementary Information
(RSI), which includes budgetary comparison schedules, infrastructure condition and maintenance data, and agent retirement plans’
funding progress. In addition, the financial section includes other supplemental financial data, which includes combining financial
statements.

The Statistical Section includes five categories of information: Financial Trends, Revenue Capacity, Debt Capacity,
Demographic and Economic Information, and Operating Information.

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provides a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of the MD&A. This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The State’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
Independent Auditors’ Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The State is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the
State are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management. In the opinion of management, the State's internal controls are adequate to provide reasonable assurance that these
objectives are met.



INDEPENDENT AUDIT

In compliance with State statute, an annual financial audit of the State Entity is completed each year by the State of Arizona,
Office of the Auditor General in conjunction with other audit firms. Their audit was conducted in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Their report on the basic financial statements has been included in the financial
section of this report. In addition, ARS 841-1279.03 requires at least a biennial single audit by the Office of the Auditor General.
The Single Audit will be issued as a separate report at a later date.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

T he State of Arizona was admitted to the Union as the 48" state in 1912. Arizona is the sixth largest state, with 113,998 square
miles. Arizona is known for the Grand Canyon, one of the Seven Wonders of the World, and its cacti and other desert landscape.
A number of national forests, three national parks, eighteen national monuments, and Indian reservations are located in Arizona.

The State has three branches of government, Executive, Legislative, and Judicial. The Executive branch is headed by a governor
elected for a four-year term. Arizona’s Legislative branch is bicameral, consisting of a thirty-member Senate and a sixty-member
House of Representatives. Legislators are elected for two-year terms. The Judicial branch consists of the Arizona Supreme Court,
Court of Appeals (with two divisions), superior courts, justice of the peace courts and municipal courts. The superior courts,
justice of the peace courts, and municipal courts are excluded from the State’s reporting entity. The Supreme Court is the highest
court in the State and is an appellate court comprised of five justices.

The services provided by the State are administered through various agencies, departments, boards, commissions, councils,
administrations, offices and institutions of higher learning. These services include: (1) General Government, (2) Health and
Welfare, (3) Inspection and Regulation, (4) Education, (5) Protection and Safety, (6) Transportation and (7) Natural Resources.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying CAFR includes all funds of the State of Arizona (primary government), as well as its component units.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of a government’s operations. Therefore, data
from these units is combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units are shown separately to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their financial position and results of
operations from those of the primary government. Discretely presented component units prepared in accordance with the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements. Discretely presented component units prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board are
presented as separate financial statements immediately following the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they
are prepared in accordance with accounting standards other than those promulgated by the GASB.

The criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity and presentation are defined by the Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, issued by the GASB, (Section 2100). Note 1 of the Notes to the Financial Statements explains
which component units are included in the Financial Reporting Entity of the State.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Budgetary control is maintained through legislative appropriation and the executive branch allotment process. The Governor is
required to submit an annual budget to the Legislature. The budget is legally required to be adopted through passage of
appropriation bills by the Legislature and approval by the Governor. The appropriated funds are controlled by the executive
branch through an allotment process. This process generally allocates the appropriation into quarterly allotments by legal
appropriation level. The State also maintains an encumbrance accounting system to further enhance budgetary control.
Encumbered amounts generally lapse as of the end of the fiscal year, with the exception of capital outlay and other continuing
appropriations. These appropriations and their encumbrances continue from year to year. The State's budgetary policies are
explained in detail in the RSI.



GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Graph 1 details the General Fund revenues and expenditures for the last five fiscal years. This graph does not include transfer
amounts relating to other fund types and other financing sources (uses), which affect the ending fund balance.

Graph 1
General Fund Revenues and Expenditures
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B Revenues O Expenditures

The General Fund ended the June 30, 2006, fiscal year with $1.4 billion in unreserved fund balance and a $831.332 million
reserved fund balance for a total fund balance of $2.3 billion. This compares to the previous year’s total fund balance of $1.3
billion. Included in the $831.332 million reserved fund balance is $651.020 million for the Budget Stabilization Fund. The
Budget Stabilization Fund is a form of Rainy Day Fund established by the Legislature in 1991.

Graph 2 details the General Fund Balance for the last five fiscal years:

Graph 2
General Fund Balance for last 5 fiscal years
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The State purchases property and liability coverage whenever available on reasonable terms. The State is insured by an
approved property insurer for claims in excess of $3.500 million, but less than $450.000 million, and liability claims in excess of
$2.000 million for the Universities and the School for the Deaf and Blind and $7.000 million for all other state agencies, but less
than $100.000 million. The State also maintains first dollar aircraft liability, hull, and airport liability coverage up to $200.000
million. Other purchased coverages include fidelity, foreign liability, medical malpractice (limited to the University of Arizona’s
medical professional staff), nuclear property, nuclear liability, and employment practices. The State's self-insurance fund
provides property and liability coverage for claims less than or in excess of this coverage, or whenever coverage, such as
workers’ compensation and medical malpractice for non-University of Arizona professional staff, is unavailable on reasonable
terms.

The State pays self-insurance losses, defense costs, premiums and administrative costs from an appropriated fund which all of the
State’s agencies participate in. Total costs (excluding the cost of administering the program) have risen from approximately
$15.300 million in fiscal year 1988 to approximately $79.900 million in fiscal year 2006. Yearly appropriations have also
increased from approximately $27.700 million in fiscal year 1988 to approximately $85.700 million in fiscal year 2006 to meet
rising losses and claims-related expenses. Annual funding is established for expected paid claims. The accrued insurance losses
are not considered when determining funding for each fiscal year.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The following economic summary is excerpted from the Arizona Department of Economic Security’s Arizona’s Workforce,
released on August 31, 2006.

Arizona’s economy is projected to grow at a faster rate than the nation in 2006 and 2007, according to the forecast update of the
Arizona Department of Economic Security, Research Administration. Nonfarm jobs in the Grand Canyon State are forecast to
increase at a rate of 4.90% in 2006 and then slow to 4.00% in 2007. Over the two-year period, nonfarm job growth is projected to
add nearly 228,000 jobs in Arizona. Meanwhile, according to the most recent figures by Global Insight, the U.S. economy is
forecast to have a slower pace of employment expansion, growing at a rate of 1.40% in 2006 and 1.10% in 2007.

Nonfarm payroll job data for July 2006, reported by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, showed Arizona as the second fastest growing
state (4.80%) over the previous 12 months. Additionally, this report showed Arizona was ranked fourth in terms of the number of
jobs added since July 2005. Population growth is a strong contributor to the State’s faster-than-national pace of expansion.

In this updated forecast, job growth is projected in ten of eleven major industry groups, with information as the only industry
slipping back into continuing job losses. The top five industries with the largest projected job gains are professional and business
services, construction, trade, transportation and utilities, educational and health services, and leisure and hospitality.

Among Arizona’s major industries, natural resources and mining is projected to have the fastest percentage growth at 28.50% in
the forecast period. Professional and business services will grow at 15.20% during the same time period and will add over 58,000
jobs. Construction is forecast to continue its expansion by growing 17.60% in 2006 and 2007. Financial activities (growing at
8.80%) and education and health services (8.20%) round out Arizona’s top five expanding industries during the forecast period.

Arizona factories are projected to add 6,400 jobs for a growth rate of 3.50% over the forecast period. Recent declines in the
number of orders for new manufactured goods at the national level contributed to the downward revision of manufacturing job
growth in the state. For example, the slowdown in the housing market has been impacting manufacturing orders.

Construction, one of the most rapidly growing industries, is forecast to increase employment by more than 40,000 jobs. Even with
a cooling housing market, nonresidential construction continues to add jobs. However, higher costs and fewer projects are
expected to slow the industry to a 6.50% rate of expansion in 2007.

Natural resources and mining, unlike all other industry groups, is projected to accelerate as new Arizona based mining operations
are completed and existing facilities are expanded. Industrial output across the globe, including East Asia, North America and
Europe, has increased the demand for many mined nonmetallic and metallic ores including copper. The rising demand and price
has provided the incentive to many Arizona mining firms to increase their capacity to extract and process copper and other
metallic ores. Publicly stated employment announcements by Arizona employers in the industry account for most of the increase
for this industry. For 2006, this industry is forecast to add 1,600 jobs and 1,000 jobs in 2007.

Trade, transportation and utilities is forecast to have an increase of almost 40,000 jobs. Slower growth in consumer spending, due
mostly from higher energy costs and sustained higher interest rates, will dampen job growth in this industry. In addition,
heightened concerns over safety and costs are expected to weaken the air transportation sector.
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Information is projected to lose slightly more than 1,000 jobs. Projected job losses are the result of continuing consolidation,
outsourcing and automation.

Financial activities is forecast to add almost 16,000 jobs. Due to higher interest rates on mortgages and other customer and
business loan products, growth is anticipated, although at a lower rate. This industry is nevertheless forecast to grow at 5.00% in
2006 and 3.80% in 2007.

Professional and business services sectors is forecast to have strong labor demand over the next two years, growing by 8.10% in
2006 and 7.10% in 2007. Since this industry is a major resource for the rest of the economy, it will follow the overall economic
trend.

Education and health services is projected to show an increase of 23,000 jobs. Arizona’s population is expected to grow at more
than 2.5 times the rate of population growth for the rest of the U.S. for the same period, providing strength in this industry. Faster
than national population growth in Arizona is driving the expansion in this industry.

Leisure and hospitality is projected to add almost 21,000 jobs over the 2006-07 period. Growth in this industry will be sustained
by a growing economy. Sustained high fuel prices and greater air travel restrictions are expected to dampen some related tourist
demand. Arizona activity is expected to be supported by domestic (local and U.S.) demand as an option to consumers traveling
abroad.

Other services is forecast to follow the general trend of the overall economy and add almost 8,000 jobs.
Government is forecast to maintain its previously projected rate and have a gain of almost 16,000 jobs.

Arizona’s forecast update shows continued, yet slowing, growth through 2006-07. Nevertheless, Arizona’s job growth is
expected to outpace the nation. This update includes an expectation of a slower second half of 2006, with further slowing in 2007.
Ten of eleven major industries are predicted to add jobs in both 2006 and 2007. The greatest number of jobs will be added in
professional and business services, while the fastest pace of growth among industries is expected in natural resources and mining.
Arizona’s economy remains generally strong, but the weakness forecast in job growth for 2006-07 is expected to be most evident
in sectors closely associated with consumer spending and in housing.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

T he Governor’s fiscal year 2006 Budget establishes key principles for nurturing the State’s fiscal and human resources so that it
is possible to compete in the 21% century economy. It recognizes that; (1) children are better able to develop and succeed if they
are healthy; (2) families are strengthened when the children of working parents are in safe daytime environments; (3) Arizona
must have a superior education system that offers each child the best chance to determine his or her path to growth and
achievement; (4) our natural resources are not only a State treasure; they also contribute to a vibrant educational system and
economy; and (5) public safety must be strengthened by recruiting and retaining the highest quality law enforcement and
correctional officers.

Effectively managed and maximized through targeted initiatives, these factors will combine to produce a world-class economy in
Avrizona for years to come.

Strengthening Families

Department of Economic Security. The FY 2006 Budget provided $11.200 million for the Day Care Subsidy for child care
caseload growth. This amount was sufficient to fund the new priority of ensuring that there was no need to institute a waiting list
for child care services for the entire fiscal year. Child care subsidies are available for low-income families, families on cash
assistance, families leaving cash assistance, and families in the Child Protective Services (CPS) system.

Healthy Families. The FY 2006 Budget provided $13.750 million for the Healthy Families Program. In order to continue the
advances made by the CPS since 2003, an additional $8.800 million is provided to fund 173.9 caseworkers for families with
children in need.

Healthcare

Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS). The FY 2006 Budget included $12.200 million to increase inpatient
reimbursement rates for qualifying rural hospitals. It also shortens the redetermination period from twelve to six months for most
AHCCCS clients. This change was expected to reduce the AHCCCS client rolls, as many clients will no longer qualify for the
program.



Education

Full Day Kindergarten. The FY 2006 Budget provided $17.000 million for the expansion of voluntary full day kindergarten from
136 schools to 282 schools serving approximately 24,000 students.

AIMS Intervention. High school students are required to pass the AIMS test in order to graduate beginning FY 2006. In order to
best prepare these students; the FY 2006 Budget includes $5.000 million for expanded AIMS tutoring.

Community Colleges. The FY 2006 Budget fully funded the Operating, Capital Outlay, and Equalization Aid funding formulas.
Arizona’s two year community colleges provide high school graduates with a variety of educational opportunities needed to allow
these graduates to participate in Arizona’s and the nation’s new economy.

Universities.

= A top-notch university system allows each person and business in Arizona to be a world-class competitor. Recognizing
this, the FY 2006 Budget provides approximately $22.000 million to fund the FY 2006 enrollment growth at the three
State universities. Additionally, Arizona State University received $1.000 million to create the Department of Biomedical
Informatics. Finally, the University of Arizona received $6.000 million for the Phoenix Medical Campus.

= The University of Arizona and Arizona State University began staffing and renovations for the new Phoenix Medical
Campus, including the new Phoenix Campus of the University of Arizona Medical School. The first students are
expected in July 2007. Also, during FY 2006, ASU became the largest University in the country.

Land and Water Management

Environmental stewardship is necessary for maintaining Arizona’s natural beauty and for enhancing the State’s economic
development.

Water. The FY 2006 Budget includes an increase of $1.900 million to restore budget cuts made to the Department of Water
Resources in previous budget years. The approved budget also provides an additional $1.400 million for Rural Water Studies to
assess local water use needs and to develop plans for sustainable future water supplies in rural areas outside the state’s Active
Management Areas.

Forest Fires. The drought has been a contributing factor in the forest fires that ravaged parts of the State in recent years. One
response to those fires was to use crews of properly supervised inmates to help with fuel treatment and fire suppression in and
around communities at risk. The FY 2005 Budget increased to 12 the number of crews, and this year’s budget provides for three
additional inmate fire crews consisting of 75 people. Additionally, the Budget provides an increase of $1.200 million for fire-
fighting training for the 15 inmate crews.

Trust Lands. Finally, a direct link can be drawn between the activities of the Land Department and the beneficiaries of the State
Land Trust, particularly as it pertains to K-12 education. To maximize the earnings from the sale and lease of State lands, the
Land Department needs sufficient resources for planning and other preparatory work. The FY 2006 Budget provides $3.000
million for the Land Department to carry out this mission.

Economic Development

Arizona 21% Century Competitive Initiative Fund. The FY 2006 Budget established the 21* Century Competitive Initiative Fund
and provided $35.000 million from the General Fund in seed money for this program. Under the Commerce and Economic
Development Commission of the Department of Commerce, the 21% Century Competitive Initiative Fund will work to build,
strengthen and promote medical, scientific and engineering research programs and infrastructure in areas of greatest strategic
value to Arizona’s competitiveness in the global economy with an emphasis in bioscience. The funds are to be used to attract
world-class researchers to Arizona and support research into new products and technologies that can be commercialized and
brought to the market.



Public Safety

Department of Public Safety. Providing public safety officials with the resources necessary to serve a growing population
continues to be a priority for Arizona. The FY 2006 Budget provides funding for initiatives designed to ensure that the public
safety system is able to keep pace with population and traffic growth, while also directing funding to impede developing crime
trends and keep our officers and citizens safe. The following initiatives helped accomplish these goals:
* An increase of $3.900 million and 63.0 FTE positions from the General Fund for the Gang Intelligence Team
Enforcement Mission.
=  $3.000 million from the General Fund for the purchase of protective safety equipment for DPS officers.
=  $3.000 million from the Highway User Reserve Fund (HURF) for sworn officer salary increases to bring DPS officer
salaries closer to market level.
*  $3.500 million and 28.0 FTE from the HURF for additional highway patrol officers in an effort to keep staffing at pace
with population and traffic growth.

Department of Juvenile Corrections. In response to a federal audit, 135 additional staff were added to enhance the mental health,
education, and safety of juveniles.

Statewide Transportation Acceleration Needs

The Governor worked with the State Legislature to ensure that additional funding was included in the State budget to speed up
transportation projects. House Bills 2863 and 2865 were signed into law to establish the Statewide Transportation Acceleration
Needs and provide $301.000 million, including $245.000 million from the General Fund, to enable the Arizona Department of
Transportation and regional authorities to accelerate highway projects across the state.

State Employees

. Without question, State employees impact Arizona’s citizens every hour of every day. Without their dedication and commitment,
our highways would not be safe, our natural resources would be neglected, our roads would not be built and maintained, and our
neediest citizens would not receive essential services and care. The FY 2006 Budget recognizes State employees’ crucial role and .
provides adequate funding to offset increases in both retirement and health insurance costs. In addition, a $1,650 salary adjustment
and 2.50% performance adjustment were provided for each FTE effective March 11, 2006.

Initiatives such as those discussed above clearly illustrate the dynamic impact that can occur when State Government optimizes its
existing resources for the benefit of the people it serves and makes the most prudent investments in its infrastructure.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of Arizona for its CAFR for the year ended June 30, 2005. This was the second
consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet the
Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

We wish to express our sincere appreciation to the many individuals whose dedicated efforts have made this report possible. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the professionalism and dedication demonstrated by the
financial and management personnel of each State agency, board, commission, council, administration, office, institution of higher
education and all other organizations within the reporting entity.

\k' D. Clark Partridge
State Comptroller
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STATE OF ARIZONA

DEBRA K. DAVENPORT, CPA OFFICE OF THE WILLIAM THOMSON
AUDITOR GENERAL AUDITOR GENERAL DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Janet Napolitano, Governor
State of Arizona

The Honorable Tim Bee, President
Arizona State Senate

The Honorable James P. Weiers, Speaker
Arizona House of Representatives

The Honorable Ruth V. McGregor, Chief Justice
Arizona Supreme Court

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and aggregate remaining
fund information of the State of Arizona as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of certain
departments and the component units, which account for the following percentages of the assets and
revenues of the opinion units affected:

Opinion Unit/Department Assets Revenues

Government-Wide Statements
Governmental activities:
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment

System 1.99% 15.51%
Department of Transportation 62.77% 13.59%
Business-type activities:
Lottery Department 1.31% 12.62%
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment
System .26% 1.37%
Department of Transportation 4.30% 40%
Aggregate discretely presented component units:
Component Units 100.00% 100.00%
Universities—Affiliated Component Units 100.00% 100.00%
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Opinion Unit/Department Assets Revenues

Fund Statements
General Fund:
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment
System 11.62% 17.75%
Transportation and Aviation Planning,
Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund:

Department of Transportation 100.00% 100.00%
Lottery Fund:
Lottery Department 100.00% 100.00%

Aggregate Remaining Fund Information:
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment

System 1% 2.78%
Department of Transportation 73% 7.33%
Arizona State Retirement System 66.09% 43.54%
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 13.05% 7.21%
Corrections Officer Retirement Plan 2.24% 1.55%
Elected Officials' Retirement Plan 90% .53%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those entities, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
financial statements of the discretely presented component units (except for the Water Infrastructure
Finance Authority) and the fiduciary fund financial statements of the Arizona State Retirement System,
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System, Corrections Officer Retirement Plan, and Elected Officials’
Retirement Plan were not audited by the other auditors in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Arizona as of June 30, 2006, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The financial statements of the Healthcare Group of Arizona, a nonmajor enterprise fund, are included as
part of the State’s business-type activities and aggregate remaining fund information. As discussed in
Note 8, the Healthcare Group of Arizona has incurred operating losses and has a net fund deficit of $3.696
million at June 30, 2006, that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue operations.
Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 8. The financial statements do
not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.



The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 23 through 34, the Budgetary Comparison
Schedules on pages 129 through 150, the Infrastructure Assets information on pages 151 through 155,
and the Schedule of Agent Retirement Plans’ Funding Progress on page 156 are not required parts of the
basic financial statements, but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we and the other auditors did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining financial statements
and schedules, and statistical section listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The combining financial
statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other
auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the
reports of the other auditors, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report on our consideration of
the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters at a future date. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Debbie Davenport
Auditor General

May 25, 2007
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discussion and analysis of the State of Arizona’s (the State’s) financial performance, providing an
overview of the activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal
letter at the front of this report and with the State’s financial statements, which follow this section. The completeness
and fairness of the following information is the responsibility of the State’s officials and management.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-Wide:

e The assets of the State exceeded liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $20.0 billion (reported as net assets). Of
this amount, $985.535 million is unrestricted, $5.0 billion is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net assets),
and $14.0 billion is invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

e The State’s total net assets increased in fiscal year 2006 by $3.1 billion. Net assets of governmental activities
increased by $2.9 billion, while net assets of the business-type activities increased by $241.135 million.

Fund Level:

e As of the close of the fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5.6
billion, an increase of $1.4 billion from the beginning of the year. Approximately 38% of the combined fund
balances, or $2.1 billion, is available to meet the State’s current and future needs (unreserved fund balance).

e As of the close of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $1.4 billion, or 8%, of total
General Fund expenditures.

e The enterprise funds reported net assets at year end of $2.8 billion, an increase of $258.185 million during the year.

e The Land Endowments Fund reported fund balance at year end of $2.0 billion, an increase of $326.494 million
during the year. The Land Endowments Fund is used to help finance public education within the State as required
by the federal government and the State’s Constitution.

Long-term Debt:

e The State’s total long-term primary government debt decreased during the fiscal year to $5.7 billion, a slight
decrease of $10.864 million (less than 1%). Changes during the year included the addition of revenue bonds and
certificates of participation of $782.880 million and $175.027 million, respectively. Also, the State retired
$812.425 million of revenue bonds, $38.540 million of grant anticipation notes, and $122.887 million of certificates
of participation.

More detailed information regarding the government-wide financial statements, fund level financial statements and
long-term debt activity can be found beginning on page 26.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the State’s basic financial statements, which are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. Required Supplementary Information and other supplementary information are included in addition to the
basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements (Reporting the State as a Whole)

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad overview of the State of Arizona’s finances in a manner
similar to private sector business. The financial statements report information about the State, as a whole, and about its
activities that should help answer this question: Is the State, as a whole, better or worse off as a result of this year’s
activities? These statements include all non-fiduciary assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. The
current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. The
government-wide financial statements include the following:
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The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Financial Position (pages 38-40) present all of the State’s assets
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net
assets measure whether the State’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Activities (pages 42-44) present information showing how the State’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise to the change
occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused
vacation leave).

Both government-wide statements report three activities:

e Governmental Activities — Most of the State’s basic services are reported under this category. Taxes and
intergovernmental revenues generally fund these services. The Legislature, the Judiciary, and the general
operations of the Executive departments fall within the governmental activities.

e Business-type Activities — The State charges fees to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain
services it provides. Lottery tickets, the State’s unemployment compensation services, Industrial Commission
rehabilitation services, and the State’s three universities are examples of business-type activities.

o Discretely Presented Component Units — Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the State are financially accountable. The University Medical Center, the Arizona Power Authority, and
the Water Infrastructure Finance Authority are discretely presented component units reported by the State. Based
on GASB Statement No. 39, the State has added university foundations and financing authorities whose financial
statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as adopted by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board. These organizations include the ASU Foundation, Arizona Capital
Facilities Finance Corporation, the U of A Foundation, and other non-major foundations and financing authorities.
Financial statements for these organizations are presented immediately following the government-wide statements
to emphasize that they are prepared in accordance with accounting standards other than those promulgated by
GASB, and include a statement of financial position (page 40) and a statement of activities (page 44). See pages
67-69 and 114-126 for more information on discretely presented component units.

Fund Financial Statements (Reporting the State’s Major Funds)

The fund financial statements begin on page 45 and provide detailed information about the major individual funds. A
fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific
sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. In addition to the major funds, page 160 begins the individual
fund data for the non-major funds. The State’s funds are divided into three categories — governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary — each category uses different accounting approaches.

e Governmental funds — Most of the State’s basic services are reported in the governmental funds, which focus on
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year end that are available for future spending.
The governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the State’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the State’s programs. These funds
are reported using modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash. Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, capital projects, debt service, and
permanent funds. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. This report includes two
schedules (pages 46 and 48-49) that reconcile the amounts reported on the governmental fund financial statements
(modified accrual accounting) with governmental activities (accrual accounting) reported on the appropriate
government-wide statement.

Governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 45 and 47 of this report.
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e Proprietary funds — When the State charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or
to other agencies within the State, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds
(enterprise and internal service) utilize accrual accounting; the same method used by private sector businesses.
Enterprise funds report activities that provide supplies and services to the general public — such as the State Lottery
Fund and Universities. Internal service funds report activities that provide supplies and services for the State’s
other programs and activities — such as the State’s Risk Management Fund. Internal service fund operations
primarily benefit governmental funds and are reported as governmental activities on the government-wide
statements. The reconciliation between the government-wide financial statement business-type activities and the
proprietary fund financial statements is presented at the end of the financial statements on pages 52-55.

Proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 50-59 of this report.

e Fiduciary funds — The State acts as a trustee or fiduciary for its employee pension plans. It is also responsible for
other assets that, because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The State’s fiduciary
activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
beginning on page 60. These funds, which include pension trust, investment trust, and agency funds are reported
using accrual accounting. The government-wide statements exclude fiduciary fund activities and balances because
these assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the State to finance its operations.

Fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 60-61 of this report.
Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes can be found beginning on page 67 of this report.
Required Supplementary Information

Following the basic financial statements is additional Required Supplementary Information that further explains and
supports the information in the financial statements. The Required Supplementary Information includes budgetary
comparison schedules for the general fund and each major special revenue fund and a reconciliation of the schedules of
statutory and U.S. GAAP expenditures for the fiscal year. This section also includes schedules of condition and
maintenance data regarding certain portions of the State’s infrastructure and agent retirement plans’ funding progress
schedules.

Required supplementary information begins on page 129 of this report.
Other Supplementary Information
Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for non-major governmental, non-major
enterprise, all internal service funds, all fiduciary funds, and non-major universities — affiliated component units. These
funds are added together, by fund type, and presented in single columns in the basic financial statements, but are not
reported individually, as are major funds on the governmental funds and proprietary funds financial statements. A
budgetary expenditure comparison schedule for the non-major special revenue funds is also included.

Other supplementary information begins on page 160 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The State’s overall financial position and operations for the past year for the primary government are summarized, as
follows, based on the information included in the government-wide financial statements.

State of Arizona-Primary Government
Net Assets as of June 30, 2006 and 2005
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Current assets $ 4723241 $ 3,503,360 $ 1,804,687 $ 1,516,254 $ 6,527,928 $ 5,019,614
Capital assets 14,989,475 14,012,830 2,884,950 2,677,802 17,874,425 16,690,632
Other non-current assets 3,555,772 2,955,282 937,469 1,063,599 4,493,241 4,018,881
Total Assets 23,268,488 20,471,472 5,627,106 5,257,655 28,895,594 25,729,127
Current liabilities 2,157,620 2,069,865 539,784 484,636 2,697,404 2,554,501
Non-current liabilities 3,887,329 4,049,808 2,341,478 2,268,310 6,228,807 6,318,118
Total Liabilities 6,044,949 6,119,673 2,881,262 2,752,946 8,926,211 8,872,619
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 12,878,151 11,825,961 1,144,374 1,166,954 14,022,525 12,992,915
Restricted net assets 3,560,868 2,938,288 1,400,455 1,232,016 4,961,323 4,170,304
Unrestricted net assets 784,520 (412,450) 201,015 105,739 985,535 (306,711)
Total Net Assets $ 17,223539 $ 14,351,799 $ 2,745844 $ 2,504,709 $ 19,969,383 $ 16,856,508

The largest portion of the State’s net assets (70%) represents capital assets, net of related debt of $14.0 billion. The
State uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the State’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of accumulated depreciation and related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The State’s net assets also include $5.0 billion (25%) of resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The largest restrictions are by the State’s Constitution for basic education funded by the earnings of the
Land Endowments Fund and by federal regulations for unemployment insurance premiums from employers for funding
the Unemployment Compensation Fund. Another major restriction is unspent debt instrument proceeds primarily for
the acquisition and construction of federal, state, and local highways.

The remaining balance of the State’s net assets of $985.535 million (5%) represents unrestricted net assets.
The State’s net assets increased $3.1 billion during the current fiscal year. This increase was primarily caused by
governmental activities increases for sales taxes, income taxes, gains on the sale of trust land, and capital assets.

Additionally, net assets were further increased by business-type activities’ increases for the Universities Fund, the
Unemployment Compensation Fund, and the Industrial Commission’s Special Fund.
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Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capital grants and
contributions

General revenues:

Sales taxes

Income taxes

Tobacco taxes

Property taxes

Motor vehicle and fuel taxes

Other taxes

Unrestricted investment
earnings

Unrestricted grants and
contributions

Miscellaneous revenue

Gain on sale of trust land

Total Revenues

Expenses:
General government
Health and welfare
Inspection and regulation
Education
Protection and safety
Transportation
Natural resources
Intergovernmental revenue
sharing
Interest on long-term debt
Universities
Unemployment compensation
Industrial Commission
special fund
Lottery
Other business-type activities
Total Expenses

Excess (deficiency) before
contributions, special items
and transfers

Contributions to permanent
endowments

Special item - intergovernmental

transfer of Sundome Center
for the Performing Arts
Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - July 1
Net Assets - June 30

State of Arizona-Primary Government

Changes in Net Assets for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Primary Government Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
721,759 $ 617,659 $ 1,906,465 $ 1,701,249 $  2,628224 $ 2,318,908
7,941,223 7,544,370 852,788 834,421 8,794,011 8,378,791
388,646 497,140 30,056 19,774 418,702 516,914
6,322,311 5,421,949 54,550 57,584 6,376,861 5,479,533
4,548,843 3,562,916 - - 4,548,843 3,562,916
248,122 237,430 - - 248,122 237,430
43,035 46,148 - - 43,035 46,148
1,857,293 1,758,950 - - 1,857,293 1,758,950
575,946 493,501 - - 575,946 493,501
172,311 106,362 49,050 40,311 221,361 146,673
12,293 11,624 - 5 12,293 11,629
235,610 387,269 58,816 26,017 294,426 413,286
567,364 288,483 - - 567,364 288,483
23,634,756 20,973,301 2,951,725 2,679,361 26,586,481 23,653,162
781,542 646,452 - - 781,542 646,452
9,057,733 8,494,206 - - 9,057,733 8,494,206
159,766 149,238 - - 159,766 149,238
5,304,555 4,853,458 - - 5,304,555 4,853,458
1,279,129 1,171,340 - - 1,279,129 1,171,340
386,777 589,966 - - 386,777 589,966
187,947 184,538 - - 187,947 184,538
2,658,636 2,335,828 - - 2,658,636 2,335,828
172,439 182,852 - - 172,439 182,852

- - 2,759,142 2,540,193 2,759,142 2,540,193

- - 226,171 292,127 226,171 292,127

- - (18,300) 106,295 (18,300) 106,295

- - 377,104 317,226 377,104 317,226

- - 136,894 120,629 136,894 120,629
19,088,524 18,607,878 3,481,011 3,376,470 23,469,535 21,984,348
3,646,232 2,365,923 (529,286) (697,109) 3,116,946 1,668,814
- ; 3,803 2,955 3,803 2,955

- - (7,874) - (7,874) -
(774,492) (707,597) 774,492 707,597 - -
2,871,740 1,658,326 241,135 13,443 3,112,875 1,671,769
14,351,799 12,693,473 2,504,709 2,491,266 16,856,508 15,184,739
17,223539 $ 14,351,799 $ 2745844 $ 2504709 $ 19,969,383 $ 16,856,508
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Change in Net Assets

Governmental Activities — Net assets increased by $2.9 billion, or 20%. This increase was primarily attributed to the
increases in earned general tax revenues. Reported sales tax and income tax revenue increased by $900.362 million, or
17%, and $985.927 million, or 28%, as compared to fiscal year 2005, respectively. Several key elements have led to
this increase. The State ranked fourth, nationally, in terms of the number of jobs added during fiscal year 2006, as
reported by Arizona’s Department of Economic Security, Research Administration. Furthermore, annual estimates of
the U.S. Census Bureau show that Arizona led the nation in population growth, with a 3.5% increase, during fiscal year
2006. Additionally, during fiscal year 2006, personal income growth in Arizona, as reported by the U.S. Bureau of
Economic Analysis, increased 7.8%, ranking Arizona sixth among all states in percentage change. Additionally, the
State’s improved efforts in tax enforcement resulted in the collection of $530.00 million for fiscal year 2006 (an
increase of $74.436 million from the prior fiscal year). Another significant contributor to the net asset increase was
record auction sales of 3,426 acres in State trust land for gross sales of $544.330 million. In many of these auctions
there was intense, competitive bidding which raised the total sales price by approximately 10.5% above the appraised
value. Furthermore, net assets were increased by the capitalization of $302.375 million of capital assets that were
previously recorded as transportation expenses.

A comparison of the net cost (income) of services by function for the State’s governmental activities is shown below for
fiscal years 2006 and 2005. Net cost (income) is the total cost less revenues generated by the activities and shows the
financial burden placed upon the State’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Governmental Activities
(expressed in thousands)

Total Cost of Services Net Cost (Income) of Services

2006 2005 2006 2005

Functions/Programs:

General government $ 781542 $ 646,452 $ 525480 $ 367,749
Health and welfare 9,057,733 8,494,206 2,454,326 2,190,654
Inspection and regulation 159,766 149,238 (678) 1,262
Education 5,304,555 4,853,458 4,247,978 3,881,306
Protection and safety 1,279,129 1,171,340 985,492 924,270
Transportation 386,777 589,966 (200,657) (43,964)
Natural resources 187,947 184,538 93,880 108,752
Intergovernmental revenue sharing 2,658,636 2,335,828 2,658,636 2,335,828
Interest on long-term debt 172,439 182,852 172,439 182,852
Total Governmental Activities $19,988,524  $18,607,878 $ 10,936,896  $ 9,948,709
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Expenses and Program Revenues
Governmental Activities for Fiscal Year 2006
(in millions of dollars)

$6,000 - O Expenses

M Program
$2,000 - |_| Revenues

Business-type Activities — The net assets increased by $241.135 million, or 10%. This increase was primarily caused by
the net increase of the Unemployment Compensation Fund of $129.536 million; a net increase in the Universities Fund
of $48.523 million; and a decrease in the Industrial Commission’s Special Fund deficit of $83.116 million. The
increase in net assets from the Unemployment Compensation Fund was primarily caused by an increase in employer
assessments (wages subject to unemployment tax rose 11% during the 12 months ending December 31, 2005) and a
decline in the cost of sales and benefits (the amount of unemployment benefits paid decreased 23% during fiscal year
2006). The increase in net assets for the Universities Fund was primarily attributed to increases in non-operating
revenues, including gains on sale of land, increased State appropriations, investment income, and gifts and donations.
The Industrial Commission’s Special Fund deficit decreased primarily due to a decrease in insolvent carrier liabilities.
Insolvent carrier liability decreased during fiscal year 2006, because there was an insignificant number of new workers’
compensation cases being assigned to the State Compensation Fund under ARS 823-966. In addition, during fiscal year
2006, $19.000 million was transferred from the Industrial Commission’s Administrative Fund to the Special Fund.

A comparison of the net cost (income) of services by function for the State’s business-type activities is shown below for
fiscal years 2006 and 2005. Net cost (income) is the total cost less revenues generated by the activities and shows the
financial burden placed upon the State’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Business-type Activities
(expressed in thousands)

Total Cost of Services Net Cost (Income) of Services
2006 2005 2006 2005
Functions/Programs:
Universities $ 2,759,142 $ 2,540,193 $ 957929 $ 871465
Unemployment Compensation 226,171 292,127 (132,076) (25,969)
Industrial Commission
Special Fund (18,300) 106,295 (52,394) 49,248
Lottery 377,104 317,226 (91,593) (80,335)
Other 136,894 120,629 9,836 6,617

Total Business-type Activities $ 3481011 § 3,376,470 $ 691,702 $ 821,026
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S FUNDS
The State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds — The general government functions are contained in the general, special revenue, debt service,
capital projects and permanent funds. The focus of the State’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the State’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At June 30, 2006, unreserved fund balance of the General
Fund was $1.4 billion, while total fund balance closed the year at $2.3 billion. As a measure of the General Fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures
and other financing uses. Unreserved fund balance represents 8% of total expenditures and other financing uses, while
total fund balance represents 13% of the same amount.

The fund balance of the State’s General Fund increased by $955.736 million during the fiscal year. The primary source
of the increase in fund balance is from the increase of sales tax and income tax revenues. Sales tax revenues increased
$881.221 million from fiscal year 2005, an increase of 19%. Sales taxes paid by retail stores and construction
contractors increased approximately $387.765 million and $253.975 million, respectively, when compared to fiscal year
2005 sales tax receipts. Income tax revenues increased $1.0 billion, an increase of 29%. Income taxes paid by
individuals increased by approximately $812.594 million, when compared to fiscal year 2005 individual income tax
receipts. In addition, income taxes paid by corporations increased approximately $194.338 million during the same
period.

Health and welfare expenditures and intergovernmental revenue increased by $568.922 million, or 7%, and $399.100
million, or 6%, as compared to fiscal year 2005, respectively. Overall program enrollment in the State’s various
healthcare programs declined .2%. However, the cost of healthcare programs, including the Social Security Act Titles
XIX (Medicaid) and XXI (State Children’s Health Insurance Program), were major contributing factors to an increase in
health and welfare expenditures during fiscal year 2006. Utilization and inflationary trends for health care costs are
incorporated into a rate development process for the managed care organization capitation rates. The capitation rates
were increased by a weighted average of 8% for the contract period of October 2005 to September 2006, primarily due
to pharmacy, physician, and inpatient costs. The State received additional intergovernmental revenue (including federal
grants and county funding) to cover a major portion of these increased costs.

Education expenditures increased $379.944 million, or 9%, compared to fiscal year 2005. The increase can be primarily
attributed to an increase of approximately $216.000 million in State assistance for kindergarten through twelfth grade
(K-12) operating expenditures largely to support an increase of 40,543 student enrollments and a 3.2% inflation
adjustment. In addition, expenditures for full day kindergarten increased approximately $22.000 million and programs
supported by federal grant aid increased by approximately $57.000 million during fiscal year 2006.

Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund

The Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund is responsible for the repair and
maintenance of existing roads, paying the debt service for roads that are built from the issuance of revenue bonds, and
providing technical assistance with road construction provided by contractors hired by the Arizona Department of
Transportation. Total fund balance increased $52.124 million during fiscal year 2006. Fund balance increased
primarily due to a $98.361 million increase in motor vehicle and fuel tax revenues and a $39.365 million increase in
licenses, fees, and permits due to increased population, which tends to follow job growth. Also, distributions to other
State agencies were $118.000 million less than fiscal year’s 2005 distributions due to 2004 Senate Bill 1314, which
required an additional $118.000 million to be transferred from vehicle license tax revenues to the State’s General Fund
in fiscal year 2005. Fund balance increases were offset, in part, due to a $103.952 million increase in distributions to
Arizona counties and cities, as a result of increased motor vehicle and fuel tax collections, and a $91.407 million
decrease in intergovernmental revenues.
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Land Endowments Fund

The fund was established when the federal government granted Arizona statehood. Both the State’s Constitution and
the federal government require that the land grants given to the State be maintained indefinitely, and the earnings from
the land grants should be used for public education, primarily K-12. The Land Endowments Fund total fund balance
increased $326.494 million during fiscal year 2006. Permanent fund endowment investments increased $311.657
million, at fiscal year end, due to record receipts from State Trust land sales and a net increase in the fair value of
investments of $71.006 million.

Proprietary funds

The business-type activities discussion for the fund level financial statements of the State’s enterprise funds provide the
same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements analysis on page 29.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the fiscal year, the original budget was amended by various supplemental appropriations and appropriation
revisions. Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the major governmental funds are in the Required Supplementary
Information section beginning on page 129. Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget
resulted in a $657.075 million increase in appropriations for the General Fund, before adjustments. The following
comments summarize current year budgetary results:

e Some of the primary reasons for the General Fund appropriations $657.075 million increase were 1) $192.021
million of prior fiscal year obligations that were paid in the current fiscal year per ARS 835-191; 2) $191.294
million for the Department of Education’s deferral of Basic State Aid and Additional State Aid payments to school
districts; 3) $16.163 million supplemental appropriation for the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System’s
Disproportionate Share Hospital program; 4) $38.050 million to the Department of Education for full-day
kindergarten funding; 5) $16.564 million to the Department of Education, primarily for increases to Basic State Aid
Entitlement and achievement testing; 6) $20.000 million for the Parks Board Growing Smarter transfer to the Land
Conservation Fund per ARS §41-511.23; 7) $39.854 million for a 2.5% performance pay adjustment and increase
of $1,650 for each full-time equivalent position beginning March 11, 2006. The original General Fund
appropriation total was $13.2 billion, before adjustments. The final General Fund appropriation total was $13.9
billion, before adjustments.

e The difference between the final budget and actual expenditures was $543.405 million, after adjustments. Of this
amount, $69.861 million will continue as legislative multiple fiscal year spending authority for fiscal year 2007 and
beyond, depending upon the budgetary guidelines of the Legislature. The remaining $473.544 million represents
the unused portion of the State’s legislatively authorized annual operating budget.

Additional budgetary information can be found on pages 149-150 of this report.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets:

The State’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2006 totaled
$17.9 billion, net of accumulated depreciation. The total primary government increase in capital assets for the current
period was 7%, with a 7% increase in capital assets used for governmental activities and an 8% increase for business-
type activities. Depreciation charges of the governmental and business-type activities for the fiscal year totaled
$279.010 million.

Major capital asset activity during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The Universities’ additions to capital assets totaled approximately $501.933 million and included increased
investments in instruction and research facilities.
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e The Department of Transportation started or completed roads and bridges totaling $1.4 billion during the fiscal
year.

For the government-wide financial statement presentation, all depreciable assets were depreciated from the acquisition
date to the end of the current fiscal year. Capital asset purchases of the governmental funds are reported in the financial
statements as expenditures.

Capital assets for the governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2006 are presented below (expressed in
thousands):

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Land $ 2,227,782 $ 1,980,978 $ 143587 $ 143,195 $ 2,371,369 $ 2,124,173
Buildings 1,527,996 1,515,343 3,101,431 2,709,694 4,629,427 4,225,037
Improvements other than

buildings 133,624 142,563 3,601 3,600 137,225 146,163
Equipment 696,119 666,417 1,166,876 1,108,706 1,862,995 1,775,123
Collections

(non-depreciable) - - 34,159 33,130 34,159 33,130
Infrastructure 9,386,364 8,870,232 305,975 289,215 9,692,339 9,159,447
Construction in progress 2,036,194 1,785,351 163,030 284,181 2,199,224 2,069,532
Less accumulated

depreciation (1,018,604) (948,054) (2,033,709) (1,893,919) (3,052,313)  (2,841,973)
Total $14,989,475 $14,012,830 $2,884,950 $2,677,802 $17,874,425 $16,690,632

See Note 4, capital assets, beginning on page 90 for additional capital asset data.

As provided by GASB Statement 34, the State has elected to record its infrastructure assets, that the Department of
Transportation is responsible for maintaining, using the modified approach. Assets accounted for under the modified
approach include 6,922 center lane miles (18,668 travel lane miles) and 4,676 bridges.

The State manages its roads using the Present Serviceability Rating (PSR), which measures the condition of the
pavement and its ability to serve the traveling public. The PSR uses a five-point scale (5 excellent, 0 impassable) to
characterize the condition of the roadway. The State’s serviceability rating goal is 3.23 for the overall system. The
most recent assessment indicated that an overall rating of 3.52 was achieved for fiscal year 2006.

The State manages its bridges using the Arizona Bridge Information and Storage System (ABISS). The State
determines the condition rating based on standards developed by the Federal Highway Administration and additional
internal criteria. It is the policy of the State to maintain a Condition Rating Index (CRI) of 92.5% or better. In fiscal
year 2006, a CRI of 93.8% was obtained.
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In addition to many smaller projects, each of the following major highway construction projects in excess of $20.000
million were started during fiscal year 2006 (expressed in thousands):

Contract Contract Current Year
Project Description Start Date Amount Expenditures
Widen roadway on US 60 from Gilbert Road to Power Road within
the City of Mesa, in Maricopa County. 09/23/05 $ 73,705 $ 37,153
Construction of State Route Loop 202 from Power Road to University
Drive within the City of Mesa, in Maricopa County. 12/19/05 195,340 34,091
Construction of State Route Loop 202 from University Drive to
Southern Avenue within the City of Mesa, in Maricopa County. 10/24/05 67,415 24,065
Reconstruct roadway to a four lane divided highway on US 93, in
Yavapai County. 09/23/05 25,472 10,302
Reconstruction of the intersection of US 89 and 1-40B within the City
of Flagstaff, in Coconino County. 11/22/05 30,480 6,398
Reconstruction at the intersection of 1-40 and North Park Drive within
the City of Winslow, in Navajo County. 10/25/05 20,629 5,578

In addition to many smaller projects, the following major highway construction projects had expenditures in excess of
$15.000 million in fiscal year 2006 (expressed in thousands):

Project
Project Description Expenditures
Construction at the interchange of State Route Loop 202 and US 60, in Maricopa County. $ 50,944
Construction of State Route Loop 202 from Power Road to University Drive, in Maricopa County. 43,694
Construction of State Route Loop 202 from Frye Road to Power Road, in Maricopa County. 43,013
Widen roadway on US 60 from Gilbert Road to Power Road, in Maricopa County. 40,130
Construction of State Route Loop 202 from Gilbert Road to Frye Road, in Maricopa County. 36,549
Construction of State Route Loop 202 from University Drive to Southern Avenue, in Maricopa
County. 26,088
Construction on US 93 north of Wickenburg, in Mohave County. 22,912
Construction on US 60 at 59 Avenue and Glendale Avenue, in Maricopa County. 21,306
Construction of State Route Loop 202 from Power Road to Elliot Road, in Maricopa County. 20,162

Capital assets financed by debt instruments do not generate funds to repay the debt instruments.
More detailed information regarding capital assets are on pages 90 and 91.
Long-term debt:

The State issues no general obligation debt instruments. The Arizona Constitution, under Article 9, Section 5, provides
that the State may contract debts not to exceed $350 thousand. This provision has been interpreted to restrict the State
from pledging its credit as a sole payment for debts incurred for the operation of the State government. As a result, the
State pledges either dedicated revenue streams or the constructed building or equipment acquired as security for the
repayment of long-term debt instruments.

Major long-term debt activity during the current fiscal year included the following:
e The Department of Transportation issued revenue bonds for $265.650 million to (i) finance portions of the
Transportation Board’s Five Year Transportation Facilities Construction Program, (ii) pay the costs of issuing the

bonds, (iii) pay interest on any bonds issued for highway purposes, and (iv) advance refund portions of previously
issued revenue bonds with a total outstanding principal balance of $148.750 million.
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e The School Facilities Board issued $448.760 million of revenue bonds to advance refund portions of previously
issued revenue bonds with a total outstanding principal balance of $446.680 million.

e The Universities issued revenue bonds for $68.470 million to fund the acquisition, construction or renovation of
capital facilities and infrastructure. Furthermore, proceeds were used to pay principal and/or interest payments on
the University of Arizona’s previously issued revenue bonds.

e The Universities issued $175.027 million of certificates of participation to (i) fund building and infrastructure
projects, (ii) current-refund previously issued certificates of participation with a total outstanding principal of
$62.100 million, (iii) refund previously issued certificates of participation with a total outstanding principal of
$9.845 million in advance of maturity, and (iv) pay principal and/or interest payments on some of the University of
Arizona’s previously issued certificates of participation.

State of Arizona-Primary Government
Outstanding Major Long-Term Debt as of June 30, 2006
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenue bonds $2,106,700 $2,170,845 $ 802,600 $ 768,000 $ 2,909,300 $ 2,938,845
Grant anticipation notes 325,430 363,970 - - 325,430 363,970
Certificates of participation 1,020,810 1,054,677 946,766 860,759 1,967,576 1,915,436
Total $3,452,940 $3,589,492 $ 1,749,366 $ 1,628,759 $ 5,202,306 $ 5,218,251

More detailed information regarding long-term debt begins on page 95.
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Arizona’s economy outpaced the nation in fiscal year 2006, with solid growth in labor markets, population, and
personal income. As previously mentioned, the State ranked fourth, nationally, in terms of the number of jobs added
during fiscal year 2006, as reported by Arizona’s Department of Economic Security, Research Administration.
Furthermore, annual estimates of the U.S. Census Bureau show that Arizona led the nation in population growth, with a
3.5% increase, during fiscal year 2006. Additionally, during fiscal year 2006, personal income growth in Arizona, as
reported by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis, increased 7.8%, ranking Arizona sixth among all states in
percentage change.

Arizona’s economy is projected to see a moderation of growth in 2007. Job growth was expected to slow in the second
half of 2006, with further slowing in 2007, as the housing market and growth in consumer spending slows down.
Nevertheless, Arizona’s economy was projected to grow at a faster rate than the nation in 2006 and 2007, according to
the forecast update of the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Research Administration.

CONTACTING THE STATE COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the State’s finances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Department of Administration, General
Accounting Office, Financial Reporting Section at (602) 542-5405. You may also access and print this report at
http://www.gao.state.az.us/financials/.

The State’s component units issue their own separately issued audited financial statements. These statements may be
obtained by directly contacting the component unit. Contact information regarding the component units begins on page
68.

-34-



BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



(This page intentionally left blank)



STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Cash with U.S. Treasury
Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer
Restricted cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Collateral investment pool
Short-term investments
Restricted investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Other
Internal balances
Due from U.S. Government
Due from local governments
Due from others
Inventories, at cost
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Investments
Investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Loans and notes
Other
Securities held in escheat
Investments
Endowment investments
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Infrastructure, land, and other non-depreciable
Depreciable buildings, property and
equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE PRIMARY COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT UNITS
$ 7,611 158,994 $ 166,605 $ 14,783
- 902,130 902,130 -
3,471,382 244,890 3,716,272 141,371
- 88,486 88,486 -
- - - 126,815
- 77,666 77,666 -
- 146,674 146,674 85,848
- - - 2,818
521,006 71,945 592,951 -
62,096 3,889 65,985 7,820
28,406 11,625 40,031 -
130,347 91,020 221,367 70,203
91,684 (91,684) - -
368,014 64,217 432,231 -
1,461 120 1,581 -
1 - 1 -
18,646 29,123 47,769 10,102
22,587 5,592 28,179 7,513
4,723,241 1,804,687 6,527,928 467,273
2,271 20,163 22,434 -
740,978 872 741,850 -
16,089 149,931 166,020 -
2,882 32,696 35,578 -
- 52,214 52,214 161,062
707,962 39,531 747,493 574,935
- 6,563 6,563 -
52,742 - 52,742 -
- 346,969 346,969 80,896
2,032,848 270,542 2,303,390 -
- 17,988 17,988 49,820
13,643,731 340,776 13,984,507 36,072
1,345,744 2,544,174 3,889,918 86,031
18,545,247 3,822,419 22,367,666 988,816
$ 23,268,488 5,627,106 $ 28,895,594 $ 1,456,089
(Continued)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

-38 -



STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Accrued liabilities

Obligations under securities loan agreements

Tax refunds payable

Due to U.S. Government
Due to local governments
Due to others

Unearned deferred revenue

Current portion of accrued insurance losses

Current portion of long-term debt

Current portion of other long-term liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue
Contracts payable
Accrued insurance losses
Funds held for others
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:

Federal grants

Capital projects

Unemployment Compensation

Debt service

Permanent funds and University funds:
Expendable
Nonexpendable

Loans and other financial assistance: expendable

Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE PRIMARY COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT UNITS

$ 443908 $ 116,781 $ 560,689 $ 37,488
534,117 69,378 603,495 21,617
- 77,666 77,666 -
417 - 417 -
7,990 9 7,999 -
460,779 7,698 468,477 -
102,811 71,410 174,221 -
104,570 93,494 198,064 -
53,366 27,304 80,670 5,013
230,797 65,422 296,219 31,770
218,865 10,622 229,487 4,878
2,157,620 539,784 2,697,404 100,766
6,006 34,770 40,776 2,355
- 2,125 2,125 -
313,834 382,939 696,773 9,733
- 45,095 45,095 -
3,560,892 1,824,336 5,385,228 867,820
6,597 52,213 58,810 9,139
3,887,329 2,341,478 6,228,807 889,047
6,044,949 2,881,262 8,926,211 989,813
12,878,151 1,144,374 14,022,525 10,240
63,219 - 63,219 -
561,795 6,106 567,901 -
- 949,919 949,919 -

44,846 9,198 54,044 19,489
19,244 189,746 208,990 -
2,785,419 178,001 2,963,420 -

- 67,423 67,423 261,156
86,345 62 86,407 -
784,520 201,015 985,535 175,391

$ 17,223,539 $ 2,745,844 $ 19,969,383 $ 466,276

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent investments $ 80,427
Receivables:
Pledges receivable 128,740
Other receivables 11,194
Total receivables 139,934
Investments:
Investments in securities 812,999
Investments held in trust for Universities 69,156
Other investments 64,847
Total investments 947,002
Net direct financing leases 72,709
Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation 269,644
Other assets 56,135
Total Assets 1,565,851
LIABILITIES
Liability under Universities' endowment
trust agreements 89,821
Bonds payable 463,967
Unearned revenue 20,770
Other liabilities 42,705
Total Liabilities 617,263
NET ASSETS
Permanently restricted 596,752
Temporarily restricted 279,168
Unrestricted 72,668
Total Net Assets $ 948,588

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands) PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS  CONTRIBUTIONS

EUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental Activities:

General government $ 781542 $ 161,664 $ 94,398 $ -
Health and welfare 9,057,733 79,806 6,523,453 148
Inspection and regulation 159,766 146,191 14,251 2
Education 5,304,555 33,390 1,023,187 -
Protection and safety 1,279,129 110,814 182,823 -
Transportation 386,777 134,068 65,752 387,614
Natural resources 187,947 55,826 37,359 882
Intergovernmental revenue sharing 2,658,636 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 172,439 - - -

Total Governmental Activities 19,988,524 721,759 7,941,223 388,646

Business-type Activities:

Universities 2,759,142 962,967 808,190 30,056
Unemployment Compensation 226,171 314,237 44,010 -
Industrial Commission Special Fund (18,300) 34,094 - -
Lottery 377,104 468,697 - -
Other 136,894 126,470 588 -
Total Business-type Activities 3,481,011 1,906,465 852,788 30,056

Total Primary Government $ 23,469,535 $ 2,628,224 $ 8,794,011 $ 418,702

COMPONENT UNITS:

Water Infrastructure Finance Authority $ 19,249 $ 18,670 $ 20952 $ -
University Medical Center 392,602 406,697 - -
Arizona Power Authority 26,612 26,329 - -
Total Component Units $ 438,463 $ 451,696 $ 20952 $ -

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Sales
Income
Tobacco
Property
Motor vehicle and fuel
Other
Unrestricted investment earnings
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Gain on sale of trust land
Miscellaneous
Contributions to permanent endowments
Special Item - intergovernmental transfer of
Sundome Center for the Performing Arts
Transfers
Total General Revenues, Contributions, Gains, Special Items, and Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE PRIMARY COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT UNITS
$ (525,480) $ (525,480)
(2,454,326) (2,454,326)
678 678
(4,247,978) (4,247,978)
(985,492) (985,492)
200,657 200,657
(93,880) (93,880)
(2,658,636) (2,658,636)
(172,439) (172,439)
(10,936,396) (10,936,896)
(957,929) (957,929)
132,076 132,076
52,394 52,394
91,593 91,593
(9,836) (9,836)
(691,702) (691,702)
(10,936,896) (691,702) (11,628,598)
$ 20,373
14,095
(283)
34,185
6,322,311 54,550 6,376,861 -
4,548,843 - 4,548,843 -
248,122 - 248,122 -
43,035 - 43,035 -
1,857,293 - 1,857,293 -
575,946 - 575,946 -
172,311 49,050 221,361 19,817
12,293 - 12,293 -
567,364 - 567,364 -
235,610 58,816 294,426 95
- 3,803 3,803 -
- (7.874) (7.874) -
(774,492) 774,492 - -
13,808,636 932,837 14,741,473 19,912
2,871,740 241,135 3,112,875 54,097
14,351,799 2,504,709 16,856,508 412,179
$ 17,223539  $ 2745844 $ 19,969,383 $ 466,276




STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES
Contributions
Rental revenue
Sales and services
Net investment income
Net assets released from restrictions
Capital lease revenue
Other revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Program services:
Payments to Universities
Leasing related expenses
Payments on behalf of Universities
Other program services

Personal services, operations, and

administrative expenses

Fundraising expenses

Interest

Other expenses

Total Expenses
Increase in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning, as restated
Transfers

Net Assets - Ending

TEMPORARILY ~ PERMANENTLY
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL

15165 $ 98,851 $ 83,815 197,831
22,361 - - 22,361
26,822 120 - 26,942
16,216 16,200 34,899 67,315
100,935 (108,910) 7,975 -
92 - - 92
19,430 10,311 153 29,894
201,021 16,572 126,842 344,435
72,724 - - 72,724
6,265 - - 6,265
22,361 - - 22,361
16,210 - - 16,210
39,471 - - 39,471
7,465 - - 7,465
8,955 - - 8,955
9,605 - - 9,605
183,056 - - 183,056
17,965 16,572 126,842 161,379
54,121 264,487 468,601 787,209
582 (1,891) 1,309 -
72,668 $ 279,168 $ 596,752 948,588

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TRANSPORTATION &
JUNE 30, 2006 AVIATION PLANNING,
(Expressed in Thousands) HIGHWAY LAND OTHER
GENERAL MAINTENANCE & ENDOWMENTS GOVERNMENTAL
FUND SAFETY FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash $ 1769 $ - $ 28 $ 5814 $ 7,611
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer 2,298,635 144,645 61,305 852,371 3,356,956
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes 431,202 70,212 B 19,592 521,006
Interest 27,008 1,681 30,549 2,846 62,084
Loans and notes - 9,464 726,904 - 736,368
Other 84,974 8,493 4,628 25,353 123,448
Due from U.S. Government 339,631 26,759 - - 366,390
Due from local governments 1,461 - - - 1,461
Due from others - - - 1 1
Due from other Funds 263,600 20,000 392 59,665 343,657
Inventories, at cost 10,299 5,005 - 369 15,673
Restricted assets:
Cash 2,271 - - - 2,271
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer 122,274 595,049 - 23,655 740,978
Cash held by trustee 12,330 - - 3,759 16,089
Investments 2,882 - - - 2,882
Securities held in escheat 52,742 - - - 52,742
Endowment investments - - 2,032,848 - 2,032,848
Other 216 8,128 - 1 8,345
Total Assets $ 3,651,294 $ 889,436 $ 2,856,654 $ 993,426 $ 8,390,810
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities $ 258,799 $ 88,786 $ 7072 $ 33,102 $ 387,759
Accrued liabilities 208,559 11,784 191 77,983 298,517
Tax refunds payable 417 - - - 417
Due to U.S. Government 7,990 - - - 7,990
Due to local governments 282,118 127,684 - 50,977 460,779
Due to others 102,760 - - 51 102,811
Due to other Funds 44,784 200,990 13,107 28,941 287,822
Unavailable deferred revenue 401,733 9,464 760,574 1,389 1,173,160
Unearned deferred revenue 77,996 - 31,621 959 110,576
Total Liabilities 1,385,156 438,708 812,565 193,402 2,829,831
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Budget stabilization fund 651,020 - - - 651,020
Highway construction - 405,571 - 20,444 426,015
Other construction - - - 6,256 6,256
School facilities improvements 110,149 - - - 110,149
Permanent funds - - 2,043,591 - 2,043,591
Continuing appropriations 69,861 79,832 498 38,341 188,532
Debt service - - - 37,792 37,792
Other fund balance reservations 302 5,005 - 140 5,447
Unreserved 1,434,806 (39,680) - - 1,395,126
Unreserved reported in:
Non-major special revenue funds - - - 697,051 697,051
Total Fund Balances 2,266,138 450,728 2,044,089 800,024 5,560,979
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 3,651,294 $ 889,436 $ 2,856,654 $ 993,426 $ 8,390,810

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 5,560,979

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds. 14,919,764

Receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 1,173,160

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. (245,684)

The allocation of internal service fund net loss results in an amount due from business-type
activities, which is not reported in the funds. 34,500

Deferred issue costs are reported as current expenditures in the funds. However, deferred
issue costs are amortized over the life of the bonds and are included in the governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 7,066

Long-term debt is not due and payable from current financial resources and, therefore, is
not reported in the funds. These amounts consist of:

Revenue bonds (2,106,700)
Grant anticipation notes (325,430)
Certificates of participation (1,020,810)
Capital leases (118,678)
Installment purchase contracts (6,815)
Premium on debt (219,958)
Deferred amount on refundings 17,832 (3,780,559)

Accrued liabilities for AHCCCS programmatic costs and reimbursements are not due and
payable from current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (237,071)

Other long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Compensated absences (122,000)
Claims and judgments (91,116) (213,116)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Other long-term assets 4,500

Net assets of governmental activities $ 17,223,539

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 TRANSPORTATION &
(Expressed in Thousands) AVIATION PLANNING,
HIGHWAY LAND OTHER
GENERAL MAINTENANCE & ENDOWMENTS GOVERNMENTAL
FUND SAFETY FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL
REVENUES
Taxes:
Sales $ 5427713 $ 316,491 $ - 3 568,886 $ 6,313,090
Income 4,535,454 - - 38 4,535,492
Tobacco 64,078 - - 184,044 248,122
Property 29,117 13,686 - 232 43,035
Motor vehicle and fuel 587 1,856,682 - 24 1,857,293
Other 467,428 - - 108,518 575,946
Intergovernmental 7,532,085 453,502 41 33,881 8,019,509
Licenses, fees, and permits 106,244 121,179 - 182,646 410,069
Earnings on investments 116,618 17,717 75,126 37,789 247,250
Sales and charges for services 89,593 1,214 13,729 57,512 162,048
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 18,087 - - 120,267 138,354
Gaming 6,008 - - 78,786 84,794
Tobacco settlement 86,231 - - - 86,231
Other 97,532 9,607 17,939 144,333 269,411
Total Revenues 18,576,775 2,790,078 106,835 1,516,956 22,990,644
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 749,992 - 28 111,353 861,373
Health and welfare 8,657,773 - 6,290 331,367 8,995,430
Inspection and regulation 53,422 - - 103,979 157,401
Education 4,713,730 - 50,622 538,590 5,302,942
Protection and safety 1,129,320 - 5,911 112,277 1,247,508
Transportation 76 370,358 - 3,169 373,603
Natural resources 66,892 - - 111,940 178,832
Intergovernmental revenue sharing 1,470,931 1,190,963 - - 2,661,894
Debt service:
Principal 17,861 - - 243,416 261,277
Interest and other fiscal charges 39,339 2,748 - 134,846 176,933
Capital outlay 85,736 731,072 343 249,664 1,066,815
Total Expenditures 16,985,072 2,295,141 63,194 1,940,601 21,284,008
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures 1,591,703 494,937 43,641 (423,645) 1,706,636
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 277,982 3,926 131 530,044 812,083
Transfers out (917,492) (457,857) (1,571) (208,834) (1,585,754)
Proceeds from sale of trust land - - 284,293 - 284,293
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 11,118 - - 11,118
Capital lease and installment purchase contracts 3,543 - - - 3,543
Refunding bonds issued - - - 596,160 596,160
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - (646,689) (646,689)
Bonds issued - - - 118,250 118,250
Premium on bonds issued - - - 59,711 59,711
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (635,967) (442,813) 282,853 448,642 (347,285)
Net Change in Fund Balances 955,736 52,124 326,494 24,997 1,359,351
Fund Balances - Beginning 1,310,402 398,604 1,717,595 775,027 4,201,628
Fund Balances - Ending $ 2,266,138 $ 450,728 $ 2,044,089 $ 800,024 $ 5,560,979

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay 1,066,815

Depreciation expense (95,527)

The net loss of internal service funds that is included with governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities.

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activities are not currently available at year-
end and are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.

Operating grants 17,036
Sales taxes 9,221
Income taxes 13,351
Accrued interest on land sales contracts 26,179
Other revenue 3,508

Trust land sales are financed with long-term mortgages. In the Statement of Activities,
the gain on sale of trust land is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the
proceeds from the collection of mortgage payments are reported.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental
funds.

Kerr vs. Killian lawsuit (15,000)
AHCCCS accrued programmatic costs (31,965)
Other noncurrent expenses (423)

Certain expenditures that are reported in the funds in the current year, but were incurred
in prior fiscal years, are not reported in the Statement of Activities.

Ladewig vs. State of Arizona lawsuit 49,539
Accrued contract payable 48,079
Compensated absences 18,271

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,359,351

971,288

(39,812)

69,295

283,071

(47,388)

115,889
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STATE OF ARIZONA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

The estimated liability for the Ladewig vs. State of Arizona lawsuit, which was accrued
at the government-wide level in fiscal year 2005, has been revised, in the State's favor,
in fiscal year 2006. This accrual was not financed from current financial resources in
fiscal year 2005 and, therefore, was not reported in the fund statements in fiscal year
2005. 25,250

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to the governmental funds; however,
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. In the current
period, proceeds were received from:

New bonds issued (118,250)
Refunding bonds issued (596,160)
Premium on bonds issued (59,711)
Deferred amount on debt refunding 21,398 (752,723)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces noncurrent liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. In the current
year, these amounts consist of:

Debt service principal 261,277
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 595,430
Debt premium/discount amortization 37,921
Amortization of deferred amount (3,566) 891,062

Some capital asset additions were financed through capital leases and installment purchase
contracts. Such financing arrangements are reported as an other financing source in the
governmental funds, however, these amounts are reported as liabilities in the Statement

of Net Assets. (3,543)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 2,871,740

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Cash with U.S. Treasury
Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer
Restricted cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Collateral investment pool
Short-term investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Other
Due from U.S. Government
Due from local governments
Due from other Funds
Inventories, at cost
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Investments
Investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Loans and notes
Other
Investments
Endowment investments
Other long-term assets
Capital assets:
Infrastructure, land, and other non-depreciable
Depreciable buildings, property and
equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT  COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES ~ COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
115576 $ -3 42,750 -3 668
- 902,130 - - -
145,863 - 13,345 56,589 29,003
- - - - 88,486
27,916 - 49,750 - -
146,632 - - - 42
- 67,287 4,658 ; )
1,251 - 2,175 - 463
4,139 - - - 7,486
71,901 7,882 1,489 3,489 6,259
64,146 - - - 71
- - - - 120
- - - - 131,310
19,172 - - 2,897 7,054
4,960 : - - 632
601,556 977,299 114,167 62,075 271,684
20,163 - - - -
- - - - 872
149,931 - - - -
32,696 - - - -
52,159 - 55 - -
29,424 - - - 10,107
6,563 - - - -
118,270 - 228,699 - -
270,542 - - - -
10,672 - - 7,316 -
332,348 - 2,996 1,110 4,322
2,506,352 - 18,552 2,563 16,707
3,529,120 - 250,302 10,989 32,008
7,130,676 977,299 364,469 73,064 303,692

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

ACTIVITIES -
INTERNAL
SERVICE FUNDS

158,994 $
902,130
244,890

88,486
77,666
146,674

71,945
3,889
11,625
91,020
64,217
120
131,310
29,123
5,592

114,426

11

6,899

3,467
2,973
7,176

2,027,681

134,952

20,163

872
149,931
32,696
52,214

39,531
6,563
346,969
270,542
17,988

340,776

2,544,174

69,711

3,822,419

69,711

5,850,100

204,663

(Continued)
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Accrued liabilities

Obligations under securities loan agreements

Due to U.S. Government
Due to local governments
Due to others

Due to other Funds
Unearned deferred revenue

Current portion of accrued insurance losses

Current portion of long-term debt

Current portion of other long-term liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue
Contracts payable
Accrued insurance losses
Funds held for others
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Capital projects
Unemployment compensation
Debt service
University funds:
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Loans and other financial assistance:
Expendable
Other
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Assets

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Net assets of business-type activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT  COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES ~ COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER

95,723 - 14,126 2,606 4,326
43,247 17,836 - - 8,295
27,916 - 49,750 - -
- 9 - - -
- - - 7,698 -
27,642 8,777 - 34,856 135
- 758 - 17,176 170,560
81,805 - - - 11,689
- - 27,304 - -
65,422 - - - -
9,413 - - 363 846
351,168 27,380 91,180 62,699 195,851
34,770 - - - -
- - - - 2,125
- - 382,939 - -
45,095 - - - -
1,824,296 - - - 40
52,145 - - - 68
1,956,306 - 382,939 - 2,233
2,307,474 27,380 474,119 62,699 198,084
1,098,164 - 21,548 3,673 20,989
6,106 - - - -
- 949,919 - - -
9,198 - - - -
189,746 - - - -
178,001 - - - -
- - - - 67,423
- - - - 62
341,987 - (131,198) 7,592 17,134
$ 1,823,202 $ 949,919 (109,650) $ 11,265 105,608

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL

FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
116,781 56,149
69,378 1,404
77,666 -
9 -
7,698 -
71,410 -
188,494 2,118
93,494 -
27,304 53,366
65,422 2,579
10,622 7,891
728,278 123,507
34,770 -
2,125 -
382,939 313,834
45,095 -
1,824,336 8,551
52,213 4,455
2,341,478 326,840
3,069,756 450,347
1,144,374 58,581
6,106 -
949,919 -
9,198 -
189,746 -
178,001 -
67,423 }
62 -
235,515 (304,265)
$ 2,780,344 $ (245,684)

(34,500)

$ 2,745,844
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and charges for services:
Pledged student tuition and fees, net of
scholarship allowances of $175,898
Pledged auxiliary enterprises, net of
scholarship allowances of $7,496
Pledged educational department
Lottery
Other
Unemployment assessments
Workers' compensation assessments
Intergovernmental
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Licenses, fees, and permits
Earnings on investments
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Settlement income
Other (revenues for Universities are pledged)
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and benefits
Interest on notes payable
Scholarships and fellowships
Personal services
Contractual services
Depreciation and amortization
Insurance
Other

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Share of State sales tax revenues
Gifts and donations
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Investment income (revenues for Universities
are pledged)
Endowment earnings on investments
Other non-operating revenue
Distributions to local governments
Interest expense
Other non-operating expense
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and Transfers

Capital grants and contributions

Contributions to permanent endowments

Special Item - intergovernmental transfer of
Sundome Center for the Performing Arts

Transfers in

Transfers out

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

Change in net assets of enterprise funds

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION

UNIVERSITIES ~ COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
$ 624,923 $ - -3 -8 -
277,332 - - - -
60,712 - - - -
- - - 468,697 -
- - - - 122,466
- 311,687 B B .
- - 24,908 - -
595,504 7,125 - - 588
94,536 - - - -
- - - - 723
- - - - 3,281
- 2,550 - - -
- - 9,186 - -
23,325 27 - 81 2,557
1,676,422 321,389 34,094 468,778 129,615
657,436 226,171 (24,433) 308,572 89,494
- - - - 4,040
114,354 - - - -
1,718,901 - - 5,657 26,934
- - - 11,303 7,356
166,799 - 1,157 215 2322
- - - 53 503
- - - 2,548 6,244
2,657,490 226,171 (23,276) 328,348 136,893
(981,068) 95,218 57,370 140,430 (7,278)
54,550 - - - -
96,441 - - - -
@7 - - - 86
35,074 36,885 9,595 - 4,381
21,619 - - - -
29,247 - 2,127 796 597
- - - (48,650) -
(70,255) - ® - @)
(14,347) - (4,973) (106) -
152,302 36,885 6,746 (47,960) 5,063
(828,766) 132,103 64,116 92,470 (2,215)
30,056 - - - -
3,803 - - - -
(7,874) - - - -
851,304 - 19,000 - 110
- (2,567) - (92,367) (988)
48,523 129,536 83,116 103 (3,093)
1,774,679 820,383 (192,766) 11,162 108,701
$ 1,823,202 $ 949,919 $ (109,650) $ 11,265 $ 105,608

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Change in net assets of business-type activities

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
$ 624,923 $ -
277,332 -
60,712 -
468,697 -
122,466 724,732
311,687 -
24,908 -
603,307 -
94,536 -
723 -
3,281 -
2,550 -
9,186 -
25,990 681
2,630,298 725413
1,257,240 593,709
4,040 -
114,354 -
1,751,492 27,818
18,659 28,848
170,493 12,990
556 116,804
8,792 6,305
3,325,626 786,474
(695,328) (61,061)
54,550 -
96,441 -
59 353
85,935 188
21,619 -
32,767 139
(48,650) -
(70,259) (356)
(19,426) -
153,036 324
(542,292) (60,737)
30,056 4,696
3,803 -
(7,874) -
870,414 -
(95,922) (821)
258,185 (56,862)
2,522,159 (188,822)
$ 2,780,344 $ (245,684)
$ 258,185
(17,050)
$ 241,135
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Receipts from assessments
Receipts from student loans collected
Receipts from sales and services of auxiliary
enterprises
Receipts from sales and services of
educational departments
Receipts from interfund services / premiums
Receipts from student tuition and fees
Receipts from federal and local governments
Receipts from settlement income
Receipts from other Funds
Payments to suppliers, prize winners, claimants,
insurance companies, or beneficiaries
Payments to employees
Payments to retirees
Payments for scholarships and fellowships
Payments for student loans issued
Payments to other Funds
Other receipts
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Custodial funds received
Office rental receipts
Share of State sales tax receipts
Grants and contributions received
Transfers from other Funds
Interest paid
Custodial funds disbursed
Grants and contributions disbursed
Distributions to local governments
Transfers to other Funds
Other receipts (payments)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from capital debt, installment purchase
contracts and capital leases
Capital grants and contributions received
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Interest paid on capital debt, installment purchase
contracts and capital leases
Principal paid on capital debt, installment
purchase contracts and capital leases
Other (payments)
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES ~ COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER

- 3 - - $ 267,416 $ 131,795

- 310,795 25,529 - -
37,468 - - - -
280,497 . . ) :
64,436 - - - -
618,343 - - - -
685,848 7,125 - - 621
- - 9,186 - -

- - - - 19,232
(625,418) (224,126) (14,872) (127,639) (92,988)
(1,689,944) - - (5,555) (27,088)
(133,726) - - - -
(38,115) - - - _
- - - - (35,921)
19,161 2,577 - 13,152 687
(781,450) 96,371 19,843 147,374 (3,662)
263,311 - - - -
- - 2,127 - -
65,168 - - - -
482,248 - - - 197
857,190 - 19,000 - 3,573
(240,644) - - - -
(380,156) - - - -
- - - (48,650) -

- (2,056) - (92,187) (988)

- - (1,967) - 399
1,047,117 (2,056) 19,160 (140,837) 3,181
22,058 - - - -
177,357 - - - -
16,951 - - - -
(389,381) - (226) (413) (3,604)
(70,854) - ®3) - -
(56,677) - (3,100) - (18)
- - (12) - -
(300,546) - (3,341) (413) (3,622)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOTAL
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES -
INTERNAL
SERVICE FUNDS

399,211
336,324
37,468

280,497

64,436
618,343
693,594

9,186

19,232

(1,085,043)
(1,722,587)
(133,726)
(38,115)
(35,921)
35,577

$ -

729,431

(677,637)
(27,534)
(9,785)

693

(521,524)

15,168

263,311
2,127
65,168
482,445
879,763
(240,644)
(380,156)
(48,650)
(95,231)
(1,568)

(11,700)
139

926,565

(1,048)

22,058
177,357
16,951
(393,624)
(70,857)

(59,795)
(12)

758

(10,040)

(307,922)

(9,282)

(Continued)
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest and dividends from investments
Change in cash collateral received from securities

lending transactions
Purchase of investments
Other (payments)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Loss on sale of capital assets

Net changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables, net of allowances
Decrease in due from U.S. Government
Decrease in due from local governments
(Increase) in due from other Funds
(Increase) decrease in inventories, at cost
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase in accrued liabilities
(Decrease) in due to U.S. Government
Increase in due to others
Increase in due to other Funds
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase (decrease) in accrued insurance losses
Increase in contracts payable
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL

AND NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Gifts and conveyances of capital assets
Assets acquired under capital leases
Contribution of capital assets from other funds
Change in fair value of investments
Amortization of bond discount and issuance costs
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding and

bond premium
Gain on disposal of capital assets, net
Intergovernmental transfer of capital assets
Amortization of deferred rent
Refinancing of long-term debt
Total Noncash Investing, Capital and Non-capital
Financing Activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION

UNIVERSITIES ~ COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
540,236 - 149,264 - -
33,821 36,884 12,776 330 4,220
- - 2,811 - -
(536,729) - (147,277) - )
- - (3,269) - -
37,328 36,884 14,305 330 4,219
2,449 131,199 49,967 6,454 116
429,084 770,931 55,878 50,135 119,003
$ 431,533 $ 902,130 $ 105,845 $ 56,589 119,119
$ (981,068) $ 95218 $ 57,370 $ 140,430 (7,278)
166,799 - 1,157 215 2,322
- - - 3 -
287 (1,642) 671 3,366 114
- - - - 33
- - - - 83
- - - - (12,899)
(258) - - (570) 1,208
(2,090) - - (586) 13
22,025 - 12,000 (271) 2,026
13,508 2,797 - 4,787 3,295
- ) - - -
82 - - - 40
- - - - 4,040
(735) - - - 1,401
- - (51,355) - -
- - - - 2,125
- - - - (185)
$ (781,450) $ 96,371 $ 19,843 $ 147,374 (3,662)
$ 3076 $ - $ - $ - -
(653) - 3,187 31 106
(1,902) - - - -
1,248 - - - -
14,248 - - - -
(7,874) - - - -
4,900 - - - -
71,585 - - - -
$ 84,628 $ - 3 3187 $ 31 106

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL

FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS

689,500 -

88,031 188

2811 -

(684,007) -

(3,269) -

93,066 188

190,185 5,026

1,425,031 109,400

$ 1615216 $ 114,426

$ (695,328) $ (61,061)

170,493 12,990

3 -

2,796 4,502

33 -

83 -

(12,899) (709)

380 (155)

(2,663) (5,028)

35,780 (4,229)

24,387 987

(2) -

122 -

4,040 1,427

666 -

(51,355) 65,600

2,125 -

(185) 844

$ (521,524) $ 15,168

$ 3076 $ -

- 5,220

- 3,903

2,671 -

(1,902) -

1,248 -

14,248 -

(7,874) -

4,900 -

71,585 -

$ 87,952 $ 9,123
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer

Prepaid benefits

Short-term investments

Receivables, net of allowances:
Accrued interest and dividends
Securities sold
Forward contract receivable
Contributions
Court fees
Due from other Funds
Miscellaneous receivables

Total receivables

Due from others

Investments, at fair value:
Temporary investments
Temporary investments from

securities lending
U.S. Government securities
Corporate bonds
Corporate notes
Corporate stocks
Real estate mortgages and contracts
Collateral investment pool
Repurchase agreements
Other investments
Money market mutual funds

Total investments

Custodial securities in safekeeping

Other assets

Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other current
liabilities

Payable for securities purchased

Accrued liabilities

Obligation under securities
loan agreements

Due to local governments

Due to others

Due to other Funds

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:

Pension benefits
Pool participants

Total Net Assets

PENSION INVESTMENT AGENCY
TRUSTS TRUSTS FUNDS

$ 28,649 $ - 41,132
- - 376,799
120,076 - -
- - 5,906
82,343 8,775 786
371,018 - -
1,889,592 - -
39,686 - -
341 - -
320 - -
4,785 - ;
2,388,085 8,775 786
- - 92,983
1,876,609 - -
2,265,754 - -
4,411,362 1,081,884 -
2,713,331 873,213 -
293,862 - -
21,010,693 - -
245,787 - -
1,121,778 - -
- 1,264,696 -
200,708 - -
- 8,703 -
34,139,884 3,228,496 -
- - 2,641,576
- - 4,072
4,447 - -
36,681,141 3,237,271 3,163,254
1,916,812 - 188,274
895,749 - -
- - 8,112
3,387,532 - -
- 5234 19,055
- - 2,947,813
320 - -
6,200,413 5,234 3,163,254
30,480,728 - ;
- 3,232,037 -
$ 30,480,728 $ 3,232,037 -

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands)

PENSION INVESTMENT
TRUSTS TRUSTS
ADDITIONS:
Member contributions $ 728,682 $ -
Employer contributions 770,993 -
Member purchase of service credit 136,857 -
Court fees 3,855 -
Investment income:
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of
investments 2,050,159 (16)
Interest income 379,154 128,584
Dividends 301,489 -
Real estate 8,150 -
Other investment income 6,062 -
Securities lending income 90,333 -
Total investment income 2,835,347 128,568
Less investment expenses:
Investment activity expenses 53,000 2,593
Security lending expenses 83,290 -
Net investment income 2,699,057 125,975
Capital share and individual account
transactions:
Shares sold - 4,548,543
Reinvested interest income - 117,750
Shares redeemed - (4,599,181)
Net capital share and individual
account transactions - 67,112
Other additions 5,790 -
Total Additions 4,345,234 193,087
DEDUCTIONS:
Retirement and disability benefits 2,034,736 -
Death benefits 17,125 -
Refunds to withdrawing members,
including interest 83,286 -
Administrative expense 36,047 -
Dividends to investors - 125,975
Other deductions 9,107 -
Total Deductions 2,180,301 125,975
Change in net assets held in trust for:
Pension benefits 2,164,933 -
Pool participants - 67,112
Net Assets - Beginning 28,315,795 3,164,925
Net Assets - Ending $ 30,480,728 $ 3,232,037

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Short-term investments
Restricted investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Interest
Other
Inventories, at cost
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted assets:
Investments held by trustee
Loans and notes receivable, net of allowances
Investments
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Land and other nondepreciable
Depreciable buildings, property and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of accrued insurance losses
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of other long-term liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue
Accrued insurance losses
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debi
Restricted for:
Debt service
Loans and other financial assistance
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE ~ UNIVERSITY ARIZONA
FINANCE MEDICAL POWER
AUTHORITY CENTER AUTHORITY TOTAL
$ -8 14,783 $ -8 14,783
135,395 - 5,976 141,371
126,815 - - 126,815
- 85,848 - 85,848
- - 2,818 2,818
7,671 - 149 7,820
3,103 64,152 2,948 70,203
- 10,102 - 10,102
- 5,630 1,883 7513
272,984 180,515 13,774 467,273
- 154,515 6,547 161,062
574,935 - - 574,935
80,896 - - 80,896
3,540 3,520 42,760 49,820
- 36,072 - 36,072
102 271,123 1,324 272,549
(94) (185,336) (1,088) (186,518)
659,379 279,894 49,543 988,816
932,363 460,409 63,317 1,456,089
- 34,010 3,478 37,488
5,147 15,762 708 21,617
- 5,013 - 5,013
25,110 3,835 2,825 31,770
59 4751 68 4,878
30,316 63,371 7,079 100,766
2,355 - - 2,355
- 9,733 - 9,733
586,895 228,004 52,921 867,820
- 9,139 - 9,139
589,250 246,876 52,921 889,047
619,566 310,247 60,000 989,813
8 9,996 236 10,240
- 19,489 - 19,489
261,156 - - 261,156
51,633 120,677 3,081 175,391
$ 312,797 $ 150,162 $ 3317 $ 466,276

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(Expressed in Thousands) WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE UNIVERSITY ARIZONA
FINANCE MEDICAL POWER
AUTHORITY CENTER AUTHORITY TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and charges for services $ - 406,697 $ 26,329 $ 433,026
Intergovernmental 20,952 - - 20,952
Licenses, fees, and permits 7,636 - - 7,636
Earnings on investments 11,034 - - 11,034
Total Operating Revenues 39,622 406,697 26,329 472,648
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and benefits - 93,716 24,663 118,379
Personal services 823 188,627 - 189,450
Contractual services 553 61,001 - 61,554
Aid to local governments 121 - - 121
Depreciation and amortization 4 18,706 40 18,750
Insurance - 4,367 - 4,367
Other 17,748 22,647 1,514 41,909
Total Operating Expenses 19,249 389,064 26,217 434,530
Operating Income 20,373 17,633 112 38,118
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 10,021 9,046 750 19,817
Other non-operating revenue - - 95 95
Interest expense - (3,538) (395) (3,933)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 10,021 5,508 450 15,979
Change in Net Assets 30,394 23,141 562 54,097
Total Net Assets - Beginning 282,403 127,021 2,755 412,179
Total Net Assets - Ending $ 312,797 $ 150,162 $ 3,317 $ 466,276

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent investments

Receivables:
Pledges receivable
Other receivables
Total receivables

Investments:
Investments in securities
Investments held in trust for Universities
Other investments
Total investments

Net direct financing leases
Property and equipment, net of

accumulated depreciation
Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Liability under Universities' endowment
trust agreements
Bonds payable
Unearned revenue
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Permanently restricted
Temporarily restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

ARIZONA CAPITAL

ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY FACILITIES OTHER
UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA FINANCIAL COMPONENT
FOUNDATION FOUNDATION CORPORATION UNITS TOTAL
$ 6,835 $ 61,398 $ 224 $ 11,970 $ 80,427
64,907 29,230 - 34,603 128,740
1,504 724 311 8,655 11,194
66,411 29,954 311 43,258 139,934
345,224 303,638 76,870 87,267 812,999
64,135 - - 5,021 69,156
55,371 8,379 868 229 64,847
464,730 312,017 77,738 92,517 947,002
24,599 - 35,000 13,110 72,709
18,063 3,111 191,967 56,503 269,644
20,664 15,321 7,649 12,501 56,135
601,302 421,801 312,889 229,859 1,565,851
64,135 20,245 - 5,441 89,821
81,710 160 302,746 79,351 463,967
- - 603 20,167 20,770
11,672 5,142 18,168 7,723 42,705
157,517 25,547 321,517 112,682 617,263
298,167 267,075 - 31,510 596,752
112,721 116,235 - 50,212 279,168
32,897 12,944 (8,628) 35,455 72,668
$ 443,785 $ 396,254 $ (8,628) $ 117,177 $ 948,588

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES
Contributions
Rental revenue
Sales and services
Net investment income
Capital lease revenue
Other revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Program services:
Payments to Universities
Leasing related expenses
Payments on behalf of Universities
Other program services

Personal services, operations, and

administrative expenses

Fundraising expenses

Interest

Other expenses

Total Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning, as restated

Net Assets - Ending

ARIZONA CAPITAL

ARIZONASTATE  UNIVERSITY FACILITIES OTHER
UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA FINANCIAL COMPONENT

FOUNDATION FOUNDATION CORPORATION UNITS TOTAL

$ 123,378 53,345 - 21,108 $ 197,831

768 - 3,878 17,715 22,361

18,190 - 121 8,631 26,942

35,178 24,058 615 7,464 67,315

- - - 92 92

7,262 10,525 4,370 7,737 29,894

184,776 87,928 8,984 62,747 344,435

32,223 33,086 - 7415 72,724

- - - 6,265 6,265

- 14,345 - 8,016 22,361

11,442 - - 4,768 16,210

15,264 3,813 3,164 17,230 39,471

) 4,798 - 2,667 7,465

2,375 - 3,850 2,730 8,955

2,709 - 4,217 2,679 9,605

64,013 56,042 11,231 51,770 183,056

120,763 31,886 (2,247) 10,977 161,379

323,022 364,368 (6,381) 106,200 787,209

$ 443785 $ 396,254 (8628) $ 117177 $ 948,588

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

INOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the State of Arizona (the State) conform to U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
applicable to governmental units adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The State is a general purpose government. The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the State (the primary
government) and its component units. Component Units’ footnote disclosures are presented in Note 15 — Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies — Component Units.

Component Units

Component units are legally separate entities for which the State is considered to be financially accountable, or organizations that
raise and hold economic resources for the direct benefit of the State. Blended component units, although legally separate entities,
are in substance part of a government’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the primary
government. Discretely presented component units of the State, except for component units affiliated with the State's Universities,
are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the State.
Because the component units affiliated with the Universities follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements,
these financial statements have been reported on separate pages following the respective counterpart financial statements of the
State. For financial reporting purposes, only the statement of financial position and the statement of activities for component units
affiliated with the Universities are included in the State's financial statements as required by the GASB.

The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting
majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the State to impose its will on that organization or (2) the
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the State.

In addition, GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units (GASB 39) requires that
legally separate, tax-exempt entities that meet all of the following criteria should be discretely presented as component units: (1)
The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the
primary government, its component units, or its constituents, (2) The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or
has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization, and (3) The
economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or its component units, is
entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government.

The State reports the following blended component units:

The Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan that benefits
employees of the State, its political subdivisions, and public schools. The ASRS is governed by a nine-member board that is
appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate to serve three-year terms.

The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) is an agent, multi-employer, public employee retirement system that
benefits fire fighters and police officers employed by the State and its political subdivisions. The PSPRS is jointly administered by
the Fund Manager and 203 local boards. The Fund Manager is a five-member board appointed by the Governor. All members
serve a fixed three-year term. Each eligible group participating in the system has a five-member local board. All members serve a
fixed four-year term.

The Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan (EORP) is a cost-sharing, multi-employer, public employee retirement plan that benefits all
State and county elected officials and judges and certain elected city officials. The EORP is administered by a five-member board
appointed by the Governor. All members serve a fixed three-year term.

The Corrections Officer Retirement Plan (CORP) is an agent, multi-employer, public employee retirement plan that benefits county
detention officers and certain employees of the State’s Department of Corrections and Department of Juvenile Corrections. The
CORRP is jointly administered by the Fund Manager of the PSPRS and 20 local boards. Each employer member participating in the
CORP has a five-member local board. All members serve a fixed four-year term.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

The State reports the following discretely presented component units:

University Medical Center (UMC) — The UMC is the primary teaching hospital for the College of Medicine, the College of Nursing,
the College of Pharmacy, the College of Public Health, and the School of Health Related Professions of the University of Arizona
(U of A). The UMC was created in 1984 when the State Legislature passed a bill that allowed the Arizona Board of Regents
(ABOR) to convey the UMC to a private, not-for-profit, tax-exempt corporation. Although an autonomous entity was created, the
teaching missions and research alliances with the U of A and the State remained. The ABOR confirms all members of the UMC’s
Board of Directors, and must approve all amendments to the UMC’s articles of incorporation and bylaws. Complete financial
statements may be obtained from the UMC’s administrative offices at 655 East River Road, Tucson, Arizona 85704, (520) 694-
2700.

Arizona Power Authority (APA) — The APA purchases the State’s allocation of power produced at the federally owned Boulder
Canyon Project hydropower plant and resells it to Arizona entities that are eligible purchasers under federal and state laws. The
APA is governed by a commission of five members appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate. The term of office of
each member is six years and the members select a chairman and vice-chairman from among their membership for a term of two
years. All revenue bonds issued by the APA must be approved by the State Certification Board. Complete financial statements may
be obtained from the APA’s administrative offices at 1810 West Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2697, (602) 542-4263.

Water Infrastructure Finance Authority (WIFA) — The WIFA is authorized to administer the Clean Water Revolving Fund. The
Clean Water Revolving Fund was created pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, which required the State to establish
the Clean Water Revolving Fund to accept federal capitalization grants for publicly owned wastewater treatment projects. The
WIFA has also entered into an agreement with the Environmental Protection Agency to administer the Drinking Water Revolving
Fund pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water Act. The WIFA is governed by a twelve-member board of directors. The ten Governor
appointed directors serve staggered terms of five years and serve at the pleasure of the Governor. Complete financial statements
may be obtained from the WIFA’s administrative offices at 1100 West Washington, Suite 290, Phoenix, Arizona 85007, (602) 364-
1310.

Component units of the State affiliated with the Universities are legally separate, tax-exempt organizations controlled by separate
Boards of Directors that meet the criteria established in GASB 39, with the exception of the Collegiate Golf Foundation and
Campus Research Corporation (CRC). The Collegiate Golf Foundation is included because it is a legally separate organization that
the State believes would be misleading to exclude due to its financial relationship to the State. The CRC is included because the U
of A appoints a majority of the board of directors and approves the budget; the U of A can thus impose its will on the CRC.

The following discretely presented component units affiliated with the Universities are reported as major component units of the
State:

Arizona State University Foundation (ASU Foundation) — The ASU Foundation's resources are disbursed at the discretion of the
Foundation's independent board of trustees, in accordance with donor directions and Foundation policy.

Avrizona Capital Facilities Finance Corporation (ACFFC) - The ACFFC provides facilities for either the use by students of ASU or
ASU itself.

University of Arizona Foundation (U of A Foundation) - The U of A Foundation supports the U of A through various fund-raising
activities and contributes funds to the U of A in support of various programs.

The following discretely presented component units affiliated with the Universities are reported as non-major component units of
the State:

Arizona State University Alumni Association, Sun Angel Foundation, and Sun Angel Endowment - These three foundations receive
funds primarily through donations and dues, and contribute funds to ASU for support of various programs.

Arizona State University Research Park, Inc. (ASU Research Park) - ASU Research Park is developing a research park to promote
and support research activities in coordination with ASU.

Mesa Student Housing, LLC — Mesa Student Housing, LLC provides facilities for either the use by students of ASU or ASU itself.
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Collegiate Golf Foundation - This foundation operates an ASU-owned golf course.

University of Arizona Alumni Association (U of A Alumni Association) - The U of A Alumni Association was established to serve
the U of A and its graduates, former students, and friends by attracting, organizing, and encouraging them to advance the U of A's
missions - teaching, research, and public service.

University of Arizona Law College Association (Law Association) - The Law Association was established to provide support and
financial assistance to the College of Law at the U of A. The Law Association funds provide support to the College on many levels,
from endowed student scholarships to named faculty professorships.

University of Arizona Campus Research Corporation (CRC) - The CRC was established to assist the U of A in the acquisition,
improvement, and operation of the U of A Science and Technology Park (Park) and related properties. The CRC currently leases
from the U of A the remaining 32.00% of building space of the Park not leased to the Arizona Research Park Authority. The CRC
is responsible for assisting in the development of the presently undeveloped portions of the Park and for subleasing unoccupied
space, newly developed space, and space now occupied by IBM or its subtenants once the current subleases expire. The U of A is
responsible for payment of operational expenses associated with the space occupied by the U of A departments, offices, and
programs.

Northern Arizona University Foundation, Inc. (NAU Foundation) - The NAU Foundation receives gifts and bequests, administers
and invests securities and property, and disburses payments to and on behalf of the NAU for advancement of its mission.

Northern Arizona Capital Facilities Finance Corporation (NACFFC) - The NACFFC was established for the purpose of acquiring,
developing, constructing, maintaining and operating student housing and other capital facilities and equipment for the use and
benefit of the NAU's students.

Complete financial statements for each of the aforementioned component units, except for the U of A Foundation, may be obtained
at the following addresses:

ASU Foundation, ASU Alumni Association, Sun Angel Foundation, Sun Angel Endowment, ASU Research Park, Inc., Collegiate
Golf Foundation, ACFFC, and Mesa Student Housing, LLC - Arizona State University, Financial Services, P.O. Box 875812,
Tempe, Arizona 85287-5812 or (480) 965-3601

The U of A Alumni Association - P.O. Box 210109, Tucson, Arizona 85721-0109

Law College Association of the U of A - P.O. Box 210176, Tucson, Arizona 85721-0176

CRC - University of Arizona Science and Technology Park, 9040 South Rita Road, Suite 1400, Tucson, Arizona 85747

NAU Foundation and NACFFC - Northern Arizona University, Comptroller's Office, P.O. Box 4069, Flagstaff, Arizona 86011

The financial statements of the U of A Foundation are not publicly available. For information regarding the U of A Foundation's
financial statements, contact the U of A Comptroller at the following address: University of Arizona, Financial Services, P.O. Box
3310, Tucson, Arizona 85722-3310.

Related Organizations

Related organizations are legally separate entities for which the State is not considered to be financially accountable, and that do not
meet the criteria established by GASB 39. The State’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making the
appointments, nor are the economic resources accessible to the State. As a result, financial activity for the organizations described
below is not included in the State’s financial statements.

Arizona Health Facilities Authority (the Authority) — Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS) §36-482 established the Authority to issue
tax-exempt bonds and loans for the purpose of reducing health care costs and improving health care for Arizona residents by
providing less expensive financing for health care institutions. Proceeds from bond issues are loaned to various qualifying nonprofit
health care institutions. The health care institutions reimburse the Authority for expenses for issuance of the bonds, pay fees of the
Authority, and make payments under the loans for the benefit of the holders of the bonds. The Authority is governed by a seven-
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member board of directors that is appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate. The directors serve staggered terms of
seven years, and can be removed for cause or at will by the Governor with the consent of the Senate.

Arizona International Development Authority (the Authority) — ARS 841-1553.01 established the Authority to facilitate the
development of international trade or commerce between Arizona and other countries. The Authority is governed by a seven-
member board of directors appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate for five-year terms, and can be removed only for
cause.

Arizona Tourism and Sports Authority (the Authority) — ARS 85-802 established the Authority to construct, finance, maintain,
improve, operate, market, and promote the use of a multipurpose facility and do all things necessary to accomplish those purposes.
The Authority may issue revenue bonds in such principal amounts to accomplish the above stated purposes. The Authority is
governed by a nine-member board of directors of which five are appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate and two
members each by the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House. The directors serve terms of five years, and may be re-
appointed for one full subsequent term, and can be removed only for cause.

Arizona Housing Finance Authority (the Authority) — ARS 841-3902 established the Authority to issue bonds for residential
dwelling units and multifamily residential rental projects in rural areas. The Authority may also establish mortgage credit certificate
programs to finance residential dwelling units in rural areas. The Authority is required to notify and obtain written consent from the
governing bodies of any city, town, county, tribal government, or existing corporation for any multifamily residential rental projects
planned for their jurisdiction. The Authority is governed by a seven-member board of directors that is appointed by the Governor
and approved by the Senate. The directors serve terms of seven years, and can be removed only for cause.

State Compensation Fund (the Fund) — ARS §23-981 established the Fund to provide insurance to employers for workers’
compensation, occupational disease compensation, and medical, surgical, and hospital benefits. The Fund is governed by a board of
directors that consists of five members appointed by the Governor for staggered terms of five years, and can be removed only for
cause. Annually, the Governor appoints a chairman from among the board members.

Joint Ventures

As described in Note 9, the U of A participates in a joint venture. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the financial activities of this
joint venture are not included in the State’s financial statements.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial statements. The government-wide
statements focus on the State as a whole, while the fund financial statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides
valuable information that can be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the usefulness of the
information.

Government-wide statements - provide information about the primary government and its component units. The statements
include a statement of net assets and a statement of activities. These statements report the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. They also distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
State and between the State and its discretely presented component units. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the State’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Net
assets are reported in three categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or voter initiative.
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Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets which do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories. Unrestricted net
assets often have constraints on resources, which are imposed by management, but can be removed or modified.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the State’s
governmental activities, and its different business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular program or function.

The State does not allocate indirect expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues include:

e charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, privileges provided, and fines or forfeitures,
e operating grants and contributions, and
e capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.

Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources and all taxes, are reported as general
revenues.

Interfund balances have been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements to the extent that they occur within either
the governmental or business-type activities. Balances between governmental and business-type activities are presented as internal
balances and are eliminated in the total column. Revenues and expenses associated with reciprocal transactions within
governmental or within business-type activities have not been eliminated.

Fund financial statements - provide information about the State’s funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements are
presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are
aggregated and reported as non-major funds. Fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported by fund type.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Operating
expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The State reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund - is the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund - accounts for all financial transactions
applicable to the general operations of the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT). The ADOT builds and maintains the
State’s highway system and the Grand Canyon Airport.

The Land Endowments Fund - holds lands granted to the State by the Federal government for the benefit of public schools and other
public institutions. Principal is maintained intact and investment earnings and lease revenues are distributed to beneficiaries in
accordance with State statute.

The State reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Universities - account for transactions of the State’s three universities, which comprise the State’s university system.

Unemployment Compensation - pays claims for unemployment to eligible recipients from employer contributions and
reimbursements.

The Industrial Commission Special Fund — accounts for deposits not to exceed 2.50% of all premiums received by the State
Compensation Fund and private insurance carriers during the preceding calendar year. These monies are used to provide additional
awards as necessary to enable injured employees to accept the benefits of any law for promotion of vocational rehabilitation of
persons disabled in industry. In addition, benefits may be paid for workers’ compensation claims filed by employees of non-insured
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employers. The Industrial Commission (Commission) then pursues against the non-insured employer for reimbursement of all
benefits paid, including assessed penalties.

The Lottery - accounts for the activities of the Arizona State Lottery.
Additionally, the State reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - account for insurance coverage, employee benefits, automotive maintenance and operation, highway
equipment rentals, and data processing and telecommunication services provided to State agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis.
It is the policy of the State to classify immaterial proprietary fund activities in governmental funds. This policy helps to reduce the
number of funds reported in the financial statements to the minimum amount needed. These funds allocate a fixed rate payroll
processing charge among all agencies, allocate postage and mailing costs among all agencies, and arrange for the sale of the State’s
office equipment and motorized vehicles at public auctions.

Pension Trust Funds - account for the activities of the ASRS, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, for which the State acts as a
trustee. These retirement plans accumulate resources to pay pension benefits of State employees and employees of other
governmental entities participating in the plans.

Investment Trust Funds - account for transactions by local governments and political subdivisions that elect to participate in the
State Treasurer’s investment pools. The Treasurer acts as trustee for the original deposits made into the investment pools.

Agency Funds - account for the receipt and disbursement of various taxes, deposits, deductions, and property collected by the State,
where the State acts as an agent for distribution to other governments and organizations.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Grants and donations are recognized as revenues as
soon as all eligibility requirements the provider imposed have been met.

Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The State
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 31 days after year-end.
Those revenues susceptible to accrual are federal reimbursements, highway user revenue tax, and state sales tax. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due and payable. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases
are reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the State funds certain programs through a combination of grants and general revenues.
Therefore, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted resources available to finance the
program. The State’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources is made on a case-by-case basis.

The State’s business-type activities and enterprise funds follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989; Accounting Principles Board Opinions; and Accounting Research Bulletins,
unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. The State has chosen the option not to follow FASB Statements
and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

D. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents
On the Statement of Cash Flows, the amount reported as “Cash and Cash Equivalents” is equal to the total of the amounts on the

Statement of Net Assets “Cash”, “Cash with U.S. Treasury”, “Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer”, “Cash held by
trustee” and “Collateral investment pool” (for the Industrial Commission Special Fund). For purposes of the Statement of Cash
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Flows, the State considers only those highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of ninety days or less to be cash
equivalents.

e Cash (not with State Treasurer) — cash includes undeposited receipts, petty cash, bank accounts, non-negotiable certificates of
deposit, and demand deposits with banking institutions other than the State Treasurer.

e Cash with U.S. Treasury — consists of unemployment compensation contributions from Arizona employers that are deposited in
a trust fund maintained by the United States Treasury.

e Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer — the State Treasurer maintains a centralized management of most State cash
resources. From the perspective of the various State funds, the pool functions as both a cash management pool and a demand
deposit account. The operations and investments of the State Treasurer’s pooled investments are described in Note 2.

e Cash held by trustee — consists of certificates of participation (COPs) proceeds that primarily are invested in government
money market mutual funds to be used for capital projects.

e Collateral investment pool — consists of cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions and investments made
with that cash. The State records the collateral received as an asset. A corresponding liability is also recorded for such
securities lending transactions.

2. Investment Valuation

Investments maintained by the State Treasurer are reported at fair value using Bank of New York (BONY) prices, as determined by
independent, industry leading data vendors whose values are either exchange provided or matrix based on similar securities.
Equities are priced utilizing the primary market close price. In the absence of a closed price, the mid, bid or ask price will be
utilized. All bonds are priced using an evaluated price, the closing exchange price or the most recent exchange or quoted bid. The
official price is normally the last traded price. Short-term instruments such as certificates of deposit and commercial paper are
based on an internal model which uses primarily a vendor price. Equity prices are compared to Bloomberg’s Index Alert. Any
differences in prices are researched and generally Bloomberg’s end of day price is used over BONY’s price. All investments with a
remaining maturity of 90 days or less, that have no price available, are priced using amortized cost (amortizing premium/accreting
discount on a straight-line to maturity method).

The ASRS investments are reported at fair value determined by the custodial agents, except for real estate and commercial
mortgages. The agent’s determination of fair values includes, among other things, using pricing services or prices quoted by
independent brokers at current exchange rates. The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent appraisals or
estimated value. Commercial mortgages have been valued on an amortized cost basis, which approximates fair value. No
allowance for loan loss has been provided as all loans are considered by the ASRS to be fully collectible. Short-term investments
are reported at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. For investments where no readily ascertainable fair value
exists, the ASRS, in consultation with its investment advisors, has determined the fair values for the individual investments based
on anticipated maturity dates and current interest rates commensurate with the investment’s degree of risk. Security transactions
and any resulting gains or losses are accounted for on a trade date basis. Net investment income includes net appreciation
(depreciation) in the fair value of investments, interest income, dividend income, and total investment expense, which includes
investment management and custodial fees and all other significant investment related costs.

For the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, investments are reported at fair value. Marketable securities (stocks and bonds), traded
on public exchanges are priced by PSPRS’s custodian Wells Fargo Bank N.A. using third party pricing services. Equity securities
are valued at the last reported sales price. Fixed income securities are generally valued using the last reported sales price or thinly
traded bonds are reported at fair value using estimates. Short term and alternative investments are reported at cost. Investment
income is recognized as earned.

E. TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable include amounts owed by taxpayers for the 2005 and prior calendar years including assessments for
underpayments, penalties, and interest. In the government-wide financial statements, a corresponding amount is recorded as
revenue using the accrual basis of accounting. In the governmental fund financial statements, revenue is recorded using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The remainder is recorded as deferred revenues.
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The income tax receivable is composed of individual and corporate estimated payments, withholding payments, and payments with
final returns and assessments that relate to income earned through June 30, 2006. Sales and motor vehicle and fuel tax receivables
represent amounts that are earned by the State in the fiscal period ended June 30, 2006, but not collected until the following month.

F. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in all funds and merchandise intended for sale to customers in the
Proprietary Funds. Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in, first-out method, weighted average, or lower of cost or market.
In the Governmental Funds, inventories are accounted for using the consumption method. Under this method, inventories are
recorded as expenditures as they are used.

G. PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

Real property taxes are levied on or before the third Monday in August and become due and payable in two equal installments. The
first installment is due on the first day of October and becomes delinquent after the first business day of November. The second
installment is due on the first day of March of the next year and becomes delinquent after the first business day of May. A lien
attaches on the first day of January preceding assessment and levy.

H. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition or, if donated, at the estimated fair market value at the date received.
Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets is only capitalized in the Proprietary Funds.

Most capital assets are depreciated over their useful life. However, the State utilizes an alternative accounting treatment for most
infrastructure assets in which costs to maintain and preserve these assets are expensed and no depreciation expense is recorded.
This approach is discussed further in the Required Supplementary Information portion of this report. The State has adopted a
general policy for capitalization thresholds, depreciation, and estimated useful lives of capital assets. In addition, the State has
approved alternative policies for some State agencies.

Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis. Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values at which asset
acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts) and estimated useful lives of capital assets being depreciated in the government-
wide financial statements and the Proprietary Funds are as follows:

Other Authorized
General State Policy Agency Policies
Capitalization Estimated Useful Life Capitalization Estimated Useful
Asset Category Threshold (yrs) Threshold Life (yrs)

Land All capitalized Not depreciated All capitalized Not depreciated
Buildings All capitalized 25-40 $0-$100,000 10-50
Improvements other than buildings $5,000 15 $5,000-$100,000 20-50
Equipment $5,000 3-15 $0-$5,000 3-25
Infrastructure All capitalized Not depreciated $0-$100,000 20-100

The State is trustee for approximately 9.3 million acres of land acquired through U.S. Government land grants in the early 1900’s.
The State acquired a substantial portion of this land at no cost and its fair market value at acquisition has not been reliably
estimated. Accordingly, this land is not reported in the accompanying financial statements. A portion of the land that the State is
trustee for has been sold and the buyers of the land have defaulted on the loans. The value of this land has been recorded at the sales
price and properly included in the financial statements.

The State has interest in and maintains significant special collections, works of art, and historical treasures. All special collections,
works of art, and historical treasures which are held for financial gain are capitalized at fair market value at the date of acquisition or
donation. Those special collections, works of art, and historical treasures which are held for educational, research, or public
exhibition purposes are not capitalized, as they are not subject to disposal for financial gain or encumbrance. Such items are
inventoried for property control purposes.

Additional disclosures related to capital assets and assets acquired through capital leases are provided in Notes 4 and 6, respectively.
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I.  INVESTMENT EARNINGS
Investment earnings are composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in fair value of applicable investments.
J. SCHOLARSHIP ALLOWANCES

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues earned by the three State Universities are reported net of scholarship
discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets. A scholarship discount and
allowance is the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided and the amount that is paid by the student or
third party making payment on behalf of the student. Accordingly, some types of student financial aid such as Pell grants and
scholarships awarded by the Universities are considered to be scholarship allowances. These allowances are netted against
applicable revenues in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.

K. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of payments to the State for goods and services, not yet rendered, or taxes, grants, and other non-
exchange transactions for which related resources are not available to pay current liabilities. In the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, revenue is deferred when cash, receivables, or other assets are received prior to their being
earned. In the governmental fund financial statements, revenue is deferred when that revenue is unearned or unavailable.

L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, the State accrues liabilities for compensated absences as required
by the GASB. In the governmental fund financial statements, liabilities for compensated absences are not accrued, because they are
not considered due and payable.

In general, State employees accrue vested annual leave at a variable rate based on years of service. Except for University
employees, an employee forfeits accumulated annual leave in excess of 240 hours at the end of a calendar year, unless the Director
of the Department of Administration authorizes an exception. University employees may accumulate up to 264 hours of vacation,
and any vacation hours in excess of the maximum amount that are unused at December 31 are forfeited. Except for University
employees, an employee who separates from State service is paid for all unused and unforfeited annual leave at the employee’s rate
of pay at the time of separation. University employees, upon termination of employment, are paid all unused vacation benefits not
exceeding 176 hours (annual accrual amount), depending on years of service and full-time equivalent employment status.

Some employees accumulate compensatory leave for time worked over 40 hours per week. An employee may accumulate up to 240
hours of compensatory leave (480 if working in a public safety activity or an emergency response activity). An employee who
separates from State service is paid for all unused compensatory leave at either the employee’s average base salary during the last
three years of employment or final base salary, whichever is higher.

Sick leave includes any approved period of paid absence granted an employee due to illness, injury, or disability. Most State
employees accrue sick leave at the rate of eight hours per month without an accumulation limit. Because sick leave benefits do not
vest with employees, a liability for sick leave is not accrued in the financial statements. However, State employees are eligible to
receive payment for an accumulated sick leave balance of 500 hours or more, with a maximum of 1,500 hours, upon retirement
directly from State service (See Note 10.C).

M. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and long-term liabilities are reported as liabilities.
Amounts due within one year are reported as current liabilities, and amounts due thereafter are reported as non-current liabilities.
Premiums and discounts on revenue bonds and COPs are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt instrument using the
straight-line method. Bonds and COPs are reported net of the applicable premium or discount. Bond issuance costs and deferred
gains or losses on debt refundings are charged to expense in the period incurred unless those costs are deemed to be material to the
State’s financial statements by management, in which case, they are deferred and amortized using either the straight-line method or
the effective interest method.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize proceeds from revenue bonds, COPs, and premiums and
discounts on revenue bonds and COPs as other financing sources and uses in the current period. Long-term liabilities are more fully
described in Note 6.

N. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for impairment of capital assets. A capital asset is considered
impaired when its service utility has declined significantly and unexpectedly. This Statement also clarifies and establishes
accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2004. The State has implemented the requirements of this standard, but they had no material effect on the financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Plans Other Than Pension Plans. This Statement
establishes uniform financial reporting standards for OPEB plans and supersedes the interim guidance included in Statement No. 26,
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Healthcare Plans Administered by Defined Benefit Pension Plans. The requirements of
this Statement for OPEB plan reporting are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The ASRS has early
implemented the requirements of this standard, but they had no material effect on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section — an amendment of NCGA Statement. This
Statement improves the understandability and usefulness of the information presented as supplementary information in the statistical
section. The provisions of this Statement are effective for statistical sections prepared for periods beginning after June 15, 2005.
The State has implemented the requirements of this standard.

GASB Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34. This
Statement enhances the usefulness and compatibility of net asset information reported by clarifying the meaning of the phrase
legally enforceable as it applies to restrictions imposed on net asset use by enabling legislation and by specifying the accounting and
financial reporting requirements for those restricted net assets. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2005. The State has implemented the requirements of this standard, but did not have any restricted net
assets that are covered by this statement.

GASB Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits. This Statement provides guidance to governmental employers for
measuring, recognizing, and reporting liabilities and expenses/expenditures related to all termination benefits, without limitation as
to the period of time during which the benefits are offered, and involuntary termination benefits. This Statement is effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The State has implemented the requirements of this standard, but did not have any current
benefits that are covered by this statement.

|NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT POLICIES

The State’s deposits and investments are primarily under the control of the State Treasurer, the Retirement Systems, the
Universities, and the Commission. These entities maintain the majority of the deposits and investments of the primary government.
The investment policies of these organizations are defined according to State statutes or a governing board or both and are described
below.

The ARS §35-312, 835-313, and §35-314 authorize the State Treasurer to invest operating, trust, and permanent endowment fund
monies. Monies deposited with the State Treasurer by State agencies are invested by the State Treasurer in a pooled fund. Any
interest earned is allocated monthly into each respective fund based on average daily cash balances. There is no income from
investments associated with one fund that is assigned to another fund.

The State statutes and the State Treasurer’s investment policies designed to administer these statutes restrict investments to
obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, obligations or other evidence of indebtedness of the State and certain local
government divisions, negotiable certificates of deposit, bonds, debentures and notes issued by U.S. corporations, commercial paper
issued by entities organized and doing business in the United States, bankers acceptances, collateralized repurchase agreements,
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money market mutual funds, domestic equities, and other securities. The State Treasurer is not allowed to invest in foreign
investments.

The State Treasurer maintains external investment pools [the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), Local Government
Investment Pool-Government, and the Central Arizona Water Conservation District]. The pools are not required to register (and are
not registered) with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 1940 Investment Advisors Act. The activity and
performance of the pools are reviewed monthly by the State Board of Investment in accordance with ARS §35-311. The fair value
of investments is measured on a monthly basis. Participant shares are purchased and sold based on the Net Asset Value (NAV) of
the shares. The NAV is determined by dividing the fair value of the portfolio by the total shares outstanding. The State Treasurer
does not contract with an outside insurer in order to guarantee the value of the portfolio or the price of shares redeemed.

State statutes authorize the retirement systems to make investments in accordance with the “Prudent Person” rule. This rule imposes
the responsibility of making investments with the judgment and care that persons of ordinary prudence would exercise in the
management of their own affairs when considering both the probable safety of their capital and the probable income from that
capital.

The ASRS invests in U.S. government and government agency obligations, real estate, commercial mortgages, corporate bonds, and
equity obligations. Per ARS §38-719, no more than 80.00% of the ASRS’ total assets may be invested at any given time in
corporate stocks or equity equivalents, based on cost value of the stocks or equity equivalents irrespective of capital appreciation.
No more than 5.00% of the voting stock of any one corporation may be owned. No more than 20.00% of the ASRS’ assets may be
invested in foreign equity securities, and those investments shall be made only by investment managers with demonstrated expertise
in such investments. No more than 10.00% of the ASRS’ assets may be invested in bonds or other evidences of indebtedness of
those multinational development banks in which the U.S. is a member nation, including the International Bank for Reconstruction
and Development, the African Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, and the Inter-American Development Bank. No
more than 1.00% of ASRS’ assets may be invested in economic development projects authorized as eligible for such investment by
the Arizona State Department of Commerce. The ASRS Board has not formally adopted more restrictive policies for the various
types of risks.

Per ARS §38-848, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP may not invest more than 70.00% in corporate stocks, based on cost value
of such stocks irrespective of capital appreciation, and shall be restricted to stocks that, except for bank and insurance stocks, are
either: 1) listed or approved on issuance for listing on an exchange registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, 2) designated or approved on notice of issuance for designation on the national market system of a national securities
association registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 3) listed or approved on issuance for listing on an
exchange registered under the laws of this State or any other State, or 4) listed or approved on issuance for listing on an exchange
registered of a foreign country with which the U.S. is maintaining diplomatic relations at the time of purchase, except that no more
than 10.00% may be invested in foreign equity securities on these exchanges, based on the cost value of the stocks irrespective of
capital appreciation. Not more than 5.00% of the voting stock of any one corporation shall be owned.

The Board of Regents governs the investment policies of the Universities. The Universities may invest operating funds and capital
projects funds in collateralized certificates of deposits and repurchase agreements with commercial banks, U.S. Treasury securities
and other Federal agency securities, or in the Local Government Investment Pool administered by the State Treasurer. For
endowment investments, donor restrictions for these investments will be applied, if any. In addition, the Board of Regents has
authorized the Universities to establish investment committees to make investment policies and investment decisions. The Board of
Regents’ policies guide the investment committees’ decisions and constitute each University’s investment policy.

Per ARS 823-1065, the Commission’s investment committee is responsible for defining, developing, and implementing investment
objectives, policies and restrictions and supervising the investment activities of the Commission. The Commission requires that
their investment policy be responsive to the unpredictable nature of the incidence and severity of claims, the long periods over
which losses may be paid, and the effect on both claims and losses of increases in treatment and rehabilitation costs. The
investment committee may invest in any legal investment authorized under ARS §38-719.

B. CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the deposits or
collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside party. The State Treasurer, the Retirement Systems, and the Universities’
deposits with financial institutions are required by State statutes to be entirely covered by the Federal Depository Insurance
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Corporation (FDIC) or, alternatively, collateralized for amounts in excess of the amount insured. The Commission’s deposits are
not required to be insured or collateralized. Surety collateral for the Universities, the ASRS, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP
must be equal to at least 100.00% of the bank balance required to be collateralized (102.00% for the State Treasurer). Beyond this
requirement, these organizations do not have a formal policy specifically addressing custodial credit risk on deposits, except for the
State Treasurer. The State statutes require surety collateral for the State Treasurer to consist of U.S. Government obligations, State
obligations, and obligations of counties and municipalities within the State. As of June 30, 2006, $3.050 million was
uncollateralized and uninsured and $2.408 million was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or its
trust department/agent, but not in the State’s name.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the value of the
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party may not be recovered. The State does not have a
formal policy in regards to custodial credit risk for investments. As of June 30, 2006, the State had $58.442 million in securities
that were uninsured, not registered in the State’s name and held by a counterparty or a counterparty’s trust department or agent but
not in the State’s name.

C. INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The State manages
interest rate risk using the segmented time distribution, weighted average maturity, and duration methods.

The State Treasurer manages interest rate risk by incorporating ARS 835-323, which states that the State Treasurer will invest
public monies in securities with a maximum maturity of five years and operating fund monies shall not be invested for a duration of
longer than three years, into their investment policy and setting forth various thresholds or parameters in accordance with each
investment pool’s portfolio structure. The State Treasurer’s policy provides either maturity or duration limitations for the various
investment pools. The interest rate risk inherent in the portfolio is monitored monthly by measuring the weighted average maturity
and/or duration.

The ASU manages interest rate risk by a policy for operating funds that limits the maximum maturity of any fixed rate issue to three
years. The capital projects funds portfolio is not limited as to the overall maturity of its investments, with funds invested per the
financing indentures to coincide with capital spending needs and debt service requirements, which are typically less than three
years, with the additional limitation that certificates of deposit and commercial paper have maximum maturities of 360 days and 270
days, respectively.

The Commission manages interest rate risk by setting different goals of yield periods or duration of maturities for each individual

investment segment within the Commission. Beyond this requirement, the Commission does not have a formal policy specifically
addressing interest rate risk.
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The following table presents the State Treasurer’s, the ASU’s, and the Commission’s weighted average maturity in years by
investment type (expressed in thousands):

Weighted Average

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (in years)
Bond mutual funds $ 8,453 2.70
Certificate of deposit 4,932 1.09
Commercial mortgage — backed securities 2,881 29.77
Commercial paper 2,600,877 0.03
Corporate asset backed securities 7,094 5.72
Corporate collateralized mortgage obligations 70,835 20.51
Corporate notes & bonds 1,039,428 1.94
Government bonds 16,438 11.16
Government mortgage backed securities 11,767 19.04
Index linked government bonds 4,792 6.97
Money market mutual funds 78,915 0.30
Repurchase agreements 1,745,625 0.01
U.S. Agency Securities 2,914,780 0.76
U.S. Agency Mortgage Backed Securities 654,076 19.39
U.S. Treasury Securities 660,170 1.19
Other 6,803 6.55

Total Debt Securities $ 9,827,866 2.03
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The ASRS does not have a formal policy in regards to interest rate risk, but does manage interest rate risk using effective duration.
Effective duration measures the expected change in value of a fixed income security for a given change in interest rate. This
method takes into account the likely timing and amounts of variable cash flows for bonds with call options and prepayment
provisions. The following table presents ASRS’ effective duration by investment type (expressed in thousands):

Investment Type Fair Value Effective Duration

Domestic Fixed Income Securities

Asset backed securities $ 253,388 1.66
Bond funds 36,043 8.53
CMO's of government sponsored entities 423,889 3.86
Commercial mortgage backed securities 390,780 3.91
Commercial paper 157,443 0.03
Corporate bonds 1,043,042 4.27
Dollar denominated debt of foreign companies 55,906 6.86
Dollar denominated debt of foreign countries 45,329 6.54
Fixed income strips 37,434 7.88
GNMA pools 116,187 3.45
Government sponsored entity debt 311,866 4.21
Indexed linked government bond funds 1,092,671 0.00
Indexed linked treasury bonds 16,337 4.73
Municipal bonds 1,260 14.89
Non-government backed CMO's 168,515 2.36
Pools of government sponsored entities 1,414,300 411
Short term investments 1,697,024 0.08
U.S. Treasury Debt 630,702 4.20

Total Domestic Debt Securities 7,892,116 3.28

Foreign Debt Securities

Corporate bonds 849 6.77
Government bonds 6,172 0.33
Provincial bonds 3,307 6.77
Margin accounts 1,605 0.08

Total Foreign Debt Securities 11,933 2.54
Total Debt Securities $ 7,904,049
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The PSPRS, the EORP, the CORP, and the NAU do not have a formal policy in regards to interest rate risk. The U of A’s
investment policy limits its operating funds to having a portfolio comprised of a significant proportion of authorized securities with
maturities of one year or less, and requires that a maximum maturity of any fixed rate issue may not exceed three years and the final
maturity of any floating rate issue may not exceed five years. The U of A capital projects and endowment funds have no such
limitations. The following table presents the interest rate risk for the PSPRS, the EORP, the CORP, the NAU, the U of A, and other
State agencies utilizing the segmented time distribution (expressed in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in years)

Less More than

Investment Type Fair Value than 1 1-5 6-10 11-15 16-20 20
Corporate bonds $ 714,644  $17,872 $ 111,536 $ 135,240 $78,116 $ 59,377 $ 312,503
Corporate bond funds 1,368 - 855 384 129 - -
Collateralized bond obligations

(CBO’s) 52,434 - - 7,800 15,813 - 28,821
Collateralized debt obligations

(CDO’s) 4,120 - - - - - 4,120
Commercial paper 293,862 293,862 - - - - -
Indexed treasury bond fund 1,220 - - - 1,220 - -
International fixed income fund 8,443 2,406 2,438 1,996 1,603 - -
Money market mutual funds 140,185 140,185 - - - - -
Municipal bonds 1,679 - 149 311 1,219 - -
Repurchase agreements 94,202 94,202 - - - - -
Securities lending pool 21,567 21,567 - - - - -
U.S. Agency Securities 635,721 143,611 32,700 187,126 135,294 47,795 89,195
U.S. Treasury Securities 459 - 83 65 311 - -
Other investments 7,769 708 3,049 3,892 120 - -

Total Debt Securities $1,977,673 $714,413 $ 150,810 $ 336,814 $ 233,825 $ 107,172 $ 434,639
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The following table presents the State’s investments at fair value that are considered to be highly sensitive to interest rate changes
(expressed in thousands):

Corporate U.S. Agency

Interest Rate Terms Bonds Securities Total

U.S. LIBOR plus/minus fixed point variable monthly to semi-

annually $ 750,013 $ 180,360 $ 930,373
Mortgage backed securities - when interest rates fall, mortgages

are refinanced and paid off early and the reduced stream of

future interest payments diminish fair value. - 673,863 673,863
Callable step-up notes - where on certain specified dates, the

issuer can call the security. If the security is not called, the

interest rate is increased by a specified amount. Prevailing

interest rates may go up faster than this increase in the coupon

interest rate. - 127,307 127,307
Other securities with sensitivity to rate changes - 128,200 128,200
Total $ 750,013 $ 1,109,730 $ 1,859,743

D. CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the
investment.

The State statutes and the State Treasurer’s investment policy require that commercial paper must be rated P1 by Moody’s Investor
Service (Moody’s) or Al or better by Standard and Poor’s Ratings Service (S & P). Corporate bonds, debentures, and notes must
carry a minimum Baa or better rating of Moody’s or a BBB or better rating of S & P. For investments not rated by Moody’s, Fitch
rating information is used. There is no statute or investment policy on ratings or credit quality for obligations issued by the U.S.
Government or its agencies or repurchase agreements. The underlying securities for repurchase agreements must be explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

The ASRS has not adopted a formal policy with respect to credit risk.

The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP’s investment policy is specific as to permissible credit quality ranges, exposure levels within
individuals’ quality tiers, and the average credit quality of the overall portfolios. The fixed income portfolio must have a minimum
weighted average quality rating of A3 by Moody’s and A- by S & P. Fixed income investments must have a minimum quality
rating of Baa3 by Moody’s and BBB- by S & P at the time of purchase. Commercial paper must have a minimum quality rating of
P1 by Moody’s and Al by S & P at the time of purchase. The portion of the bond portfolio in investments rated Baa3 through Baal
by Moody’s and BBB- through BBB+ by S & P must be 20.00% or less of the fair value of the fixed income portfolio.

The Universities each have a different policy regarding credit risk. The ASU’s policy requires that certificates of deposit have a
minimum credit rating of A1/P1, commercial paper have a minimum credit rating of A1+/P1 and money market funds have a credit
rating of AAAm or better, all rated by S & P. The U of A’s policy requires that for endowment funds, corporate bonds and notes
should be rated Baa or higher by Moody’s at the time of purchase. The NAU does not have a formal policy with respect to credit
risk.

The Commission’s investment policy requires that fixed income investments be rated Ba or better by Moody’s or BB or better by S
& P at the time of purchase. Fixed income managers hired to manage funds in a specialized manner (high yield) are exempted from
this requirement. Purchases of high yield fixed income investments will consist of a diversified portfolio of holdings which will
maintain in the aggregate a minimum credit rating of Ba3 by Moody’s and BB by S & P.
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The following table presents the State’s investments which were rated by S & P and/or an equivalent national rating organization as
of June 30, 2006. The ratings are presented using S & P’s rating scale (expressed in thousands):

Fair

Investment Type Value AAA AA A BBB BB B Al Not Rated
Alternative investments $ 200,705 $ - 3 -3 - 8 - % - % - 3 - $ 200,705
Asset backed securities 260,866 235,778 5,498 5,328 1,574 - 1,079 - 11,609
Bond funds 45,864 36,043 1,368 - - - - - 8,453
Certificates of deposit 4,932 - 4,932 - - - - - -
CBO’s 52,435 7,355 - 37,280 1,794 6,006 - - -
CDO’s 77,823 73,703 - - 4,120 - - - -
CMO's of government sponsored entities 423,889 96,392 - - - - - - 327,497
Commercial mortgage backed securities 393,661 351,449 1,121 277 - - - - 40,814
Commercial paper 3,052,182 157,443 - - - - - 2,894,739 -
Corporate bonds 2,784,409 211,348 447,466 1,254,968 481,497 69,069 53,475 - 266,586
Dollar denominated debt of foreign

companies 55,906 809 3,759 27,291 22,753 1,294 - - -
Dollar denominated debt of foreign

countries 45,329 23,740 2,638 2,573 16,378 - - - -
Fixed income strips incl US strips 37,434 37,434 - - - - - - -
Foreign corporate bonds 849 849 - - - - - - -
Foreign government bonds 6,172 5,894 - - 278 - - - -
Foreign margin accounts 1,605 - - - - - - - 1,605
Foreign provincial bonds 3,307 - 3,307 - - - - - -
GNMA pools 116,187 116,187 - - - - - - -
Government bonds 22,175 22,175 - - - - - - -
Government mortgage backed securities 11,767 11,767 - - - - - - -
Government sponsored entity debt 311,866 291,446 20,420 - - - - - -
Indexed linked government bond funds 1,092,671 - - - - - - - 1,092,671
Indexed linked treasury bonds 17,557 17,557 - - - - - - -
International fixed income fund 8,443 6,713 168 768 401 234 159 - -
Money market mutual funds 219,099 126,078 - - - - - - 93,021
Mortgages 10,599 10,599 - - - - - - -
Municipal bonds 2,939 1,369 1,570 - - - - - -
Non-government backed CMO's 168,515 164,493 - 41 - - - - 3,981
Pools of government sponsored entities 1,414,300 1,414,300 - - - - - - -
Securities lending pool 21,567 - - - - - - - 21,567
Short term money markets 1,697,024 - - - - - - - 1,697,024
U.S. Agency Securities 3,998,267 2,827,299 25,169 - - - - 1,145,710 89
Other investments 13,440 - - - - - - - 13,440

Total $16,573,784  $6,248,220  $517,416 $1,328,526  $528,795 $76,603 $54,713  $4,040,449  $3,779,062

E. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer. The State
Treasurer’s, the ASRS’, the U of A’s, and the Commission’s investment policies state that no more than 5.00% of their investments
may be invested in securities issued by any one institution, agency, or corporation, other than securities issued as direct obligations
of or are fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government or mortgage backed securities and agency debentures issued by federal agencies.
The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP’s investment policy states that no more than 5.00% of their investments may be invested in
securities issued by any one institution, agency, or corporation, other than securities issued as direct obligations of or are fully
guaranteed by the U.S. Government. The ASU and the NAU have no formal policy in regards to the concentration of credit risk. At
June 30, 2006, more than 5.00% of the Governmental Activities’ total investments were held in the following single issuers
(expressed in thousands):
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Issuer Description Fair Value Percentage

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation $ 1,199,482 18.96%
Federal Home Loan Bank 862,745 13.64%
Federal National Mortgage Association 624,781 9.88%

At June 30, 2006, more than 5.00% of the Business-type Activities’ total investments were held in the following single issuers
(expressed in thousands):

Issuer Description Fair Value Percentage
Federal National Mortgage Association $ 125,568 5.04%

F. FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in the foreign exchange rate will adversely impact the fair value of an investment or
deposit. The State does not have a policy regarding foreign currency risk. The ASRS is the primary State agency that has foreign
currency risk. Per ARS §38-719, no more than 20.00% of the ASRS assets may be invested in foreign equity securities and those
investments shall be made only by investment managers with demonstrated expertise in those investments. The ASRS Board has
not adopted a formal policy that is more restrictive. The following table summarizes the State’s foreign currency risk as of June 30,
2006 (expressed in thousands):

Foreign Currency Risk by Investment Type at Fair Value

Currency Short Term Fixed Income Equities Real Estate Total
Australian Dollar $ 628 $ - $ 53308 $ - $ 53936
British Pound Sterling (938) - 572,484 - 571,546
Canadian Dollar 106 - 16,131 - 16,237
Danish Krone 1,898 - 21,434 - 23,332
Euro Currency 6,346 5,894 1,071,646 45 1,083,931
Hong Kong Dollar 352 - 72,859 - 73,211
Indonesian Rupiah - - 4,284 - 4,284
Japanese Yen 17,091 - 688,921 - 706,012
New Mexican Peso 296 278 - - 574
New Taiwan Dollar - - 21,650 - 21,650
New Zealand Dollar 488 3,307 10,947 - 14,742
Norwegian Krone 22 - 7,660 - 7,682
Singapore Dollar 135 - 65,094 19 65,248
South Korean Won - - 28,050 - 28,050
Swedish Krona 577 - 30,421 - 30,998
Swiss Franc 538 - 268,992 - 269,530
Thailand Baht - - 4,293 - 4,293
Other 3,252 9,434 52,094 - 64,780
Total $ 30,791 3 18,913 $2,990,268 $ 64  $3,040,036
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G. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

The ARS 823-703 requires that unemployment compensation contributions from Arizona employers be deposited in an
unemployment trust fund account with the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States that is established and maintained pursuant
to Section 1104 of the Social Security Act. The cash on deposit in the trust fund account is pooled and invested. Interest earned
from investments purchased with such pooled monies is deposited in the trust fund account. The Unemployment Compensation
Fund, reported as a major Enterprise Fund, has been established for this purpose.

H. SECURITIES LENDING

Cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions and investments made with that cash are reported as assets. A
corresponding liability is also recorded for such securities lending transactions.

1. Industrial Commission

State statutes and the Commission’s policies permit the Commission to enter into securities lending transactions with its custodial
bank. There were no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions, and there were no borrower or lending agent default
losses to the securities lending agent. The custodial bank, Northern Trust, manages the securities lending operations through a
contractual agreement with the Commission and splits the fees received with the Commission. There was no credit risk (i.e.,
lender’s exposure to the borrowers of its securities) related to the securities lending transactions at June 30, 2006. Northern Trust’s
indemnification responsibilities include performing appropriate borrower and collateral investment credit analysis, demanding
adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with applicable Department of Labor and Federal Financial Institutions
Examinations Council regulations concerning securities lending. Securities are loaned for collateral that may include cash, U.S.
Government securities, and irrevocable letters of credit. Domestic securities are loaned for collateral valued at 102.00% of the
market value of securities loaned plus accrued interest. International securities are loaned for collateral valued at 105.00% of the
market value of securities loaned plus accrued interest. The market value at June 30, 2006 for loaned securities collateralized by
cash and non-cash collateral was $48.935 million and $5.207 million, respectively. As part of the securities lending transactions,
Northern Trust received cash and non-cash collateral valued at $49.750 million and $5.295 million, respectively at June 30, 2006.
Non-cash collateral cannot be pledged or sold unless the borrower defaults. Deposit and investment risk disclosures are only
reported for collateral received on securities lent.

All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower. The average term of the loans is 80 days and
cash open collateral is invested in a short-term investment pool, the Core USA Collateral Section, which had an average weighted
maturity of 41 days as of June 30, 2006. Cash collateral may also be invested separately in term loans, in which case the
investments match the loan term. Cash open loans can be terminated on demand by either lender or borrower and there were no
dividends or coupon payments owing on securities lent. Securities lending earnings are credited to participating clients on
approximately the fifteenth day of the following month. Investments made with cash collateral received are classified as an asset on
the Statement of Net Assets. A corresponding liability is recorded as the Commission must return the cash collateral to the
borrower upon expiration of the loan. At June 30, 2006, the Commission had $49.750 million outstanding as payable for securities
lending.

2. Arizona State Retirement System

The ASRS is permitted by ARS 838-715(D) (3), to enter into securities lending transactions. The ASRS’ custodial bank enters into
agreements with counterparts to loan securities and have the same securities redelivered at a later date. All securities are eligible for
loan (U.S. fixed income securities, U.S. equities, and international equities) with a higher percentage of U.S. Treasuries on loan than
most other security types. It is the policy of the ASRS to receive as collateral at least 102.00% of the market value of the loaned
securities and maintain collateral at no less than 100.00% for the duration of the loan. At year-end, the ASRS has no credit risk
exposure to borrowers because the amount the ASRS owes the borrowers exceeds the amount the borrowers owe the ASRS. The
ASRS records the collateral received as an asset and the same amount as an obligation for securities on loan. Any cash collateral
received is invested in short-term investments. The maturities of the investments are closely matched to those of the security loans
to avoid interest rate exposure. The ASRS receives a spread for its lending activities. Investments made with cash collateral
received are classified as an asset on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. A corresponding liability is recorded as the ASRS must
return the cash collateral to the borrower upon expiration of the loan. At June 30, 2006, the ASRS had $2.3 billion outstanding as
payable for securities on loan.
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3. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System, Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan and Corrections Officer Retirement
Plan

The EORP, the PSPRS, and the CORP are permitted by ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 3, 4, and 6, respectively, to enter into
securities lending transactions. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP are parties to securities lending agreements with a bank. The
bank, on behalf of the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, enters into agreements with brokers to loan securities and have the same
securities returned at a later date. The loans are fully collateralized, primarily by cash. Collateral is marked-to-market on a daily
basis. Non-cash collateral can be sold only upon borrower default. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP require collateral of at
least 102.00% of the fair value of the loaned U.S. Government or corporate security. Securities on loan are carried at fair value. As
of June 30, 2006, the fair values of securities on loan were (expressed in millions):

PSPRS $ 891.375
EORP 70.380
CORP 134.101

4. University of Arizona

During the fiscal year, the U of A engaged in securities lending transactions within its endowment funds, as authorized by the Board
of Regents. The U of A entered into an agreement with Wells Fargo, the U of A’s custodian, to carry out these transactions. The
custodian enters into agreements with brokers to loan securities and have the same securities returned at a later date. It is the policy
of the U of A to receive as collateral at least 102.00% of the market value of the loaned securities and accrued interest, and maintain
collateral at no less than 100.00% for the duration of the loan. At year-end, the U of A had no credit risk to borrowers because the
U of A was holding more collateral than the amount of loaned securities outstanding.

The U of A records the collateral received as an asset, which is offset by an obligation recorded under securities lending. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, there were no violations of legal or contractual provisions, and there were no borrower or lending
agent default losses. Wells Fargo does indemnify the U of A against losses due to borrower defaults. Collateral can be received in
the form of U.S. Government securities, letters of credit, or cash. As of June 30, 2006, the custodian has received only cash
collateral. This collateral may be invested in U.S. Treasury and sponsored agency obligations, repurchase agreements, bankers’
acceptances, commercial paper, mortgage backed securities, municipal securities, and corporate bonds or in a cash collateral
investment pool, which invests in similar securities. At June 30, 2006, cash collateral received from borrowers was invested in the
cash collateral investment pool and corporate bonds, which had a weighted average maturity of 3 days and 377 days, respectively,
and represented 78.00% and 22.00% of cash collateral investments, respectively. The relationship between the maturities of the
cash collateral investment pool and the U of A’s securities loans is affected by the maturities of the securities loans made by other
entities that use the custodial bank’s pool, which the U of A cannot determine. However, the U of A or the borrower can terminate
securities loans on demand. Other cash collateral investments are made such that their maturities will match those of the related
securities loans. Such matching existed at year-end. At June 30, 2006, cash collateral investments totaled $27.916 million with a
corresponding market value of securities on loan of $27.270 million. Securities lent for cash collateral included corporate stocks,
corporate bonds, agency notes, agency bonds, government notes, and government bonds. The U of A cannot sell or pledge
securities received as collateral unless the borrower defaults. The U of A earns a negotiated fee for participating in securities
lending activities.

I. DERIVATIVES
A derivative instrument is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

e It has (1) one or more underlyings and (2) one or more notional amounts or payment provisions or both. Those terms determine
the amount of the settlement or settlements, and in some cases whether or not a settlement is required.

e It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of
contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

e Its terms require or permit net settlement, it can readily be settled net by means outside the contract, or it provides for delivery
of an asset that puts the recipient in a position not substantially different from net settlement.
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The principal categories of derivatives employed and their uses during the year were as follows:

Category Purpose
Currency forward contracts Hedge currency risk of investments
denominated in foreign currencies.
Futures contracts Reduce transaction costs; obtain market

exposure; enhance returns.

Derivatives are reported at fair value. The fair value of currency forward contracts is determined by interpolating the spot rate and
the forward rates based upon number of days to maturity. The interpolated rate is used to determine the unrealized gain/loss at the
valuation date. The fair value of futures contracts is determined by calculating the difference between the closing Bloomberg
market price on valuation date and the original futures trade price. Futures are settled daily.

Generally, derivatives are subject to both interest rate risk and credit risk. The derivatives utilized by ASRS internal investment
managers typically have no greater interest rate risk than their physical counterparts, and in many cases are offset by exposure
elsewhere in the portfolio. As of June 30, 2006, the ASRS had $1.2 billion in temporary investments held as collateral for equity
and fixed income derivatives which may have a positive or negative notional value.

The ASRS believes that it is unlikely that any of the derivatives used by its internal investment managers could have a material
adverse effect on the financial conditions of the System.

J. STATE TREASURER’S SEPARATELY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The State Treasurer issues a separately published Annual Financial Report. The report provides additional information relating to
the State Treasurer’s total investing activities, including the Investment Trust Funds. A copy of the State Treasurer’s Office Annual
Financial Report can be obtained from their office location at:
State Treasurer’s Office
1700 W. Washington
Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2812

The Treasurer’s financial statements are audited by the Office of the Auditor General.
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‘NOTE 3. RECEIVABLES/DEFERRED REVENUE

A. TAXES RECEIVABLE

The following table summarizes taxes receivable at June 30, 2006 (expressed in thousands):

Transportation

& Auviation
Planning, Highway
Maintenance &  Unemployment Industrial Non-Major Government-

General Safety Compensation Commission Governmental Wide

Type of Tax Fund Fund Fund Special Fund Funds Total
Sales $ 400,429 $ - $ - $ - $ 3,055 $ 403,484
Income — individual and corporate 132,015 - - - - 132,015
Motor vehicle and fuel - 70,212 - - - 70,212
Luxury 8,842 - - - 16,537 25,379
Unemployment - - 67,287 - - 67,287
Other - - - 4,658 - 4,658
Gross taxes receivable 541,286 70,212 67,287 4,658 19,592 703,035
Allowance for uncollectible taxes (110,084) - - - - (110,084)
Net Taxes Receivable $ 431,202 $ 70,212 3$ 67,287 $ 4,658 $ 19,592 $ 592,951
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B. DEFERRED REVENUE

At June 30, 2006, the components of deferred revenue, in terms of revenue unavailable and unearned, were as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Total Deferred

Current Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds: Unavailable Unearned Revenue
General Fund:
Delinquent sales tax $ 94,113 $ - $ 94,113
Delinquent income tax 72,212 - 72,212
Tobacco settlement 42,907 - 42,907
Child support administrative reimbursements 4,894 - 4,894
Advance insurance premiums - 41,752 41,752
Advance land lease payments - 291 291
Public assistance overpayments 1,601 - 1,601
Vaccine & commodity food supplement - 9,272 9,272
Advanced county Medicaid payments - 20,675 20,675
Federal grants 185,882 - 185,882
Tribal reimbursements 124 - 124
Transportation & Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance & Safety Fund:
Notes receivable for real estate mortgage loans 9,464 - 9,464
Land Endowments Fund:
Land sales receivable 757,430 - 757,430
Land leases receivable 3,144 - 3,144
Advance land lease payments - 31,621 31,621
Non-Major Funds:
Public assistance overpayments 1,389 - 1,389
Advance payments for Hawaii/Arizona PMMIS Alliance - 906 906
Other - 53 53
Total Current Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds 1,173,160 104,570 1,277,730

Noncurrent Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds:
General Fund:

Advance land lease payments - 6,006 6,006
Total Noncurrent Deferred Re